Christian Brecher, Cathrin Wesch-Potente (Eds.)

Proceedings of CoE-Conference 2013

Integrative Production Technology for High-Wage Countries



Bibliographic information published by the Deutsche Nationalbibliothek

The Deutsche Nationalbibliothek lists this publication in the Deutsche Nationalbibliografie; detailed bibliographic data are available in the Internet at http://dnb.dnb.de

Christian Brecher, Cathrin Wesch-Potente (Eds.):

Proceedings of CoE-Conference 2013 – Integrative Production Technology for High-Wage Countries

1st Edition, 2014



Apprimus Verlag, Aachen, 2014 Wissenschaftsverlag des Instituts für Industriekommunikation und Fachmedien an der RWTH Aachen Steinbachstr. 25, 52074 Aachen Internet: www.apprimus-verlag.de, E-Mail: info@apprimus-verlag.de

ISBN 978-3-86359-198-4

Table of Contents

Simulation and Formation of Crystallization in Semi-Crystalline Polymers	1
Viable inspection system within the context of the ICD-D	13
Analytical modeling and simulation of process forces in milling	23
Autonomous generation of process knowledge in milling	43
Using the .vtk-Standard for Stress Visualization of Special Gears	55
MPC of an Injection Moulding Process - From physical Modelling to Model-based Control	75
ICMEg – the Integrated Computational Materials Engineering expert group - a new European coordination action	85
CSP-2: How to move forward in production theory development?	.105
Analysis of friction stir welded blanks made from DC04 mild steel and aluminum AA6016	.115
Benefits and Barriers of Interdisciplinary Work. Supporting and investigating interdisciplinarity.	.129
Adaptive Function Templates for Improved Function Structure Applicability	.143
Performance Measurement within Interdisciplinary Clusters of Excellence	.157
Simulation-Based Path-Planning for Robot-Machine-Cooperation	.171
Manufacturing of lattice structures in solid shells by Selective Laser Melting	.183
Human Factors and Quality Management: "I" and "Q" in complex supply chain systems	.205
Integrated Product and Tool Development	.215
Simulative study of the interrelationships of a multi-stage supply chain, taking into account the product quality	.223
Additive manufacturing of automatically optimized profile extrusion dies	.233
Improvement of Global Footprint Design decisions by the use of an evolutionary algorithm	.245
Machine development for direct, mould-less production systems	.259
Adaptive Sequence Planning for Production Networks	.275
Scalability of the mechanical properties of SLM produced micro struts	.287
Assembly of Large Components in a Smart Factory	.299
Supporting technology transfer via web-based platforms	.309
Self-optimizing assembly of aircraft shells in global referencing systems	.321
Fabrication of Hierarchical Structures by Direct Laser Writing and Multi-Beam- Interference	.337
Self-optimizing assembly of individualized laser systems	.351
In-Mould Metal Spraying: New production technology for metallised plastic components	.355

Model-Based Assembly Control Concept	.367
Influence of surface pre-treatment on the transferability of Zn-EMC-coatings	.381
Determination of process variables in CO2 lasercutting and GMA welding	.395
Hyperslice Visualization of Metamodels for Manufacturing Processes	.409
Guidelines for traceable Measurements on MTPs	.421
How Virtual Production Intelligence Can Improve Laser-Cutting Planning	
Processes	.429
Enhancement in wire-based laser deposition welding	.447
Value-oriented layout planning using the Virtual Production Intelligence (VPI)	.459

Simulation and Formation of Crystallization in Semi-Crystalline Polymers

Spekowius, M.

Abstract

Because of their wide range of application and complex properties, it is desirable to have a precise simulation of the global part properties. This is only possible by taking inhomogeneous material properties into account. For the prediction of these properties it is necessary to calculate a high resolution texture of the local microstructure in the part. Thus the microstructure simulation is an important tool for the investigation and development of new simulation models, e.g. for the computation of shrinkage and warpage. With the goal to predict a high resolution texture of the microstructure in injection moulded parts the simulation software "SphäroSim" is developed at the IKV and extended with new models for the prediction of flow induced crystallization.



5

Bild 2















Viable inspection system within the context of the ICD-D

Frank, D.

Abstract

The Viable-Systems-Model (VSM), which was first introduced by Stafford Beer has proven to be a convenient framework for the design of self-optimizing production systems. With the design of the management model, Beer introduced the principles of viability and recursion as the central structural characteristics of his model: He defines five main management systems in order to guarantee the viability of a system. Being a recursive system, the VSM allows setting the focus on different levels of depth for system design and development. The VSM has been used in several cases to design enterprises, organizations or even governmental structures. However, the application of the model to technical systems, i.e.to develop the architecture of technical systems has not been done so far. After a short introduction to the main principles of the VSM it will be shown how the structure and design rules of the VSM can be transferred to a robot inspection system. Furthermore, it will be presented how to connect viable processes and technologies cited to the research of the cluster of excellence on a higher recursion level.









Recursion of the VSM Transferred to the ICD-D

Control units of operative systems (System 1s) represent metasystems (Systems 3, 4 and 5) for lower levels of the recursion:







Summary & Outlook			
	 Technological systems s presented, can be descr 	such as the inspection system ibed using a VSM-framework	
	 Future research focus a the system itself and its the VSM 	nd remaining challenges within context can be displayed within	
	With the help of the VSN positioned within the ICI visible	<i>I</i> the inspection system can be D-D and connections are directly	
RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Fraunhofer	RINTHAACHEN	le Ə

Γ

Analytical modeling and simulation of process forces in milling

Cabral, G. F. gustavo.francisco.cabral@ipt.fraunhofer.de

Keywords:

milling, simulation, forces, design, planning

Abstract

Applying software tools helps producing enterprises with highly qualified employees to plan and optimize production processes more efficiently. Modern tools for planning and designing milling processes usually consider only the macro contact conditions between the workpiece and milling tool and are very limited for designing processes with specific cutting edge geometries.

In this work, an innovative analytical approach for determining the geometrical conditions and deriving the process forces in five-axis milling is presented. The simulation of the engagement conditions is based on parameters which are obtained through numerical extraction models. The geometrical cutting conditions are analytically calculated. The proposed analytical model considers the cutting edge geometry and evaluates the uncut chip dimensions including chip thickness, width, length and cross-sectional area. The cutting forces are predicted by using oblique cutting theory, considering the ploughing and shear forces acting on the tool edge.

The developed models are currently being implemented in a software tool using coupled simulations which allows a simulation-based planning of milling processes.

Bibliography

Brecher, Christian (Hrsg.): Integrative Produktionstechnik für Hochlohnländer, 1. Edition, Springer Verlag, 2011.

F. Klocke, K. Arntz, G.F. Cabral, M. Stolorz, and M. Busch, "Characterization of Tool Wear in High-Speed Milling of Hardened Powder Metallurgical Steels," Advances in Tribology, vol. 2011, Article ID 906481, 13 pages, 2011. doi:10.1155/2011/906481

Altintas Y. Manufacturing Automation: Metal Cutting Mechanics, Machine Tool Vibrations, and CNC Design. New York: 1. ed. Cambridge University Press, 2000



Agenda		
1 Introduction		
2 Design of milling processes		
3 Process modelling and simulation		
4 Case study		
5 Summary and outlook		
● RWTH Aachen University	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 1

Problem description Challenging limitations of machining processes



Unfavorable cutting conditions

- Low material removal rates
- Unfavorable chipping formation mechanisms
- High affinity to adhesion and diffusion due to strong reactivity of certain materials
- High pressure on upper area of rake face due to high chip curvature and hence low contact length

→ Process disturbance, re-work and workpiece rejection

Progressive tool wear leads to unwanted effects in process:

- Increase of process forces and temperatures
- Recalibration of tools parameters and demanded new-calculation of the NC-Path in CAM
- Undesired surface marks due to tool change
- Increasing roughness of the generated surface
- Undefined residual material

High tool wear, bad surfaces, long processing times

RWITHAACHEN LINIVERSITY

Page 2

RODUCTION

© RWTH Aachen University

Problem description Challenging limitations of machining processes









 No standardized methodologies and technology databases



Identifying further

Potential

Target







Machine	Process	Settings
Design Kinematics Properties/ Stiffness Tool holder	Force Torque Temperature Power Energy	 Macro contact conditions (from correspondents a_e, a_p, tool orientation etc.) Feed rate f_z Cutting speed v_c Cantilever length
Workpiece		Cutting fluid
Material Mechanical, chemical and	Multiavis milling	Chip geometry
thermal properties Geometry	Waitiaxis	sectional area
Rim zone Microstructure Inhomogeneities		• Other parameters : impact factor, compactness ratio etc.
Disturbances	Milling tool	Output
Vibrations Environmental influences Operator	 Cutting edge Material rounding Hardness Macro and Stiffness microgeometry 	 Wear Breakage Surface roughness Rim zone influence
Methodology for simulation of milling processes Development of a modular simulation tool



Methodology for simulation of milling processes Analysis of engagement conditions as prerequisite

















Methodology for a Machinability Analysis Uncut Chip Thickness is Significant for Occurring Forces







© RWTH Aachen University

39

Page 25





Autonomous generation of process knowledge in milling

Auerbach, T. t.auerbach@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: Self-optimization, modeling, milling

Abstract

Process knowledge is a key factor of production and is decisive for the success of a company. It is also an integral part of the self-optimization approach which is currently researched within the Cluster of Excellence. In this context, process knowledge in machine readable form is required to provide the self-optimizing manufacturing system a basis for decision making and optimization processes.

In this presentation, an innovative approach for milling processes is introduced. It illustrates how a manufacturing system can be enabled to generate process knowledge in machine readable form autonomously. The presentation is structured in three sections. In the first section, the general self-optimization approach for manufacturing processes as well as the process independent modeling methodology are briefly presented to describe the initial situation. The second section includes the new concept for the autonomous generation of process knowledge in milling and shows some of the first results to implement this concept. The results are a configuration assistant to define a modeling task, an intelligent method to organize experiments, a genetic algorithm to determine model coefficients and a communication interface. The last section closes the presentation with a brief summary.



Agenda		
1 Initial situation / Motivation		
2 General idea and first results		
3 Summary		
	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	page 2











 Image: Image:



First results: Development of a genetic algorithm to determine model coefficients





Agenda
1 initial situation / Motivation
2 General idea and first results
3 Summary

Summary



- Current research activities within sub-project D2 focuses on the development of a testing platform, that is able to generate process knowledge in milling autonomously.
- The general concept and some first results were presented.
- First results are:
 - A configuration assistant to define the testing conditions and the experiments,
 - A genetic algorithm to determine optimal model coefficients,
 - An algorithm to organize the required milling experiments as well as
 - A communication interface to enable the information flow between the information processing system and the machine.

page 13



Using the .vtk-Standard for Stress Visualization of Special Gears

Henser, J. J.Henser@wzl.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0)241 80-27737

Brumm, M. M.Brumm@wzl.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0)241 80-27416

Brecher, C. C.Brecher@wzl.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0)241 80-27407

Keywords:

Gear, Beveloid, VTK, Tooth Contact Analysis

Abstract

Through the development of new processes and products a need for special transmissions and gears arises constantly. They are mostly characterized by complex kinematics and geometries. These transmissions and gears can usually not be analyzed using standard software. Either the contact characteristics are modeled in a commercial FE-software, which costs a lot of effort. Or software for this special case has to be developed. Sometimes this results in strong simplifications to enable standard gear software to analyze the parts. In order to overcome this barrier for special transmissions and gears (e.g. beveloids), the general tooth contact analysis software ZaKo3D can be used [HEMM07, ROET12].

The software ZaKo3D calculates the loads on the tooth flanks and the stresses in the tooth root. Until now no possibility exists to visualize the loads and tooth root stresses in each calculated rolling position. Therefore this presentation describes, how the vtk-format [PRAH12] can be used to visualize the calculated results. In two test cases is shown, how a stress-analysis can be performed, by connecting ZaKo3D and the visualization tool kit ParaView. As test-cases beveloid gearings are used. The axes of the first gearing are parallel, the axes of the other gearing are crossing. It is shown for both test-cases, how the position of the contact line and the overlap influence the maximum tooth root stresses.

Bibliography

- [HEMM07] Hemmelmann, J. E.: Simulation des lastfreien und belasteten Zahneingriffs zur Analyse der Drehübertragung von Zahnradgetrieben. Dissertation, RWTH Aachen, Shaker, Aachen, 2007
- [ROET12] Röthlingshöfer, T.: Auslegungsmethodik zur Optimierung des Einsatzverhaltens von Beveloidverzahnungen. Dissertation, RWTH Aachen, 2012
- [PRAH12] Prahl, U.; Schmitz, G. J.: Integrative computational materials engineering, Wiley-VCH, Weinheim, 2012

WITH AACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Using the .vtk-Standard for Stress Visualization of Special Gears
	Cluster-Conferences 2013
RWITHAACHEN	DiplIng. Jannik Henser DrIng. Markus Brumm Prof. DrIng Christian Brecher
	Aachen, den 23./ 24. September 2013
TH Aachen University	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

อแ	ucture			
1	Introduction			
2	State of the Art			
3	Integration of vtk-Standard into ZaKo3D			
4	Stress-Analysis of a Beveloid Gear with Parallel Axes			
5	5 Stress-Analysis of a Beveloid Gear with Crossed Axes			
6	Summary and Outlook			
© RW	TH Aachen University Page Page Page Page Page Page Page Page	ge 1		

Parallel Axes	Intersecting Axes	Crossing Axes	
Cylindrical Gears	Bevel Gears	Me.	
Involute Gear	Straight Bevel Gears	Hypoid Gears	
Cycloid Gear			
Circular Arc Gear	Skew Bevel Gears	Worm Gears	
Wildhaber-Novikov-			
Driving Pin Gears	Spiral Bevel Gears	<i>(</i>)	
Others	Others	Crossed Helical Ge	ars
Internal Gears	Face Gears	Transmission کریوید	
Rack	Beveloids with Intersecting Axes	Beveloids with Crossing Axes	

Software Overview – Tooth Contact Analysis

Software	Producer	Functionality	
STplus	FZG / FVA	Analytical, different standards, load collective	
STIRAK	WZL / FVA	FEM-calculation, line contact, geometry from generating simulation with tool	
RIKOR	FZG / FVA	Analytical, slice model	
DZP	FZG / FVA	Dynamic contact analysis by use of mass-spring-system	
PlanKorr	LMGK / FVA	Analytical acc. to DIN, stiffness from FEM	
Romax	Romax Tech.	Analytical acc. to DIN	
KISSsoft	KISSsoft AG	Different analytical methods, load collectives	
Mdesign LVR	TEDATA	Analytical acc. to DIN	
KIMoS / Becal	Klingelnberg	Analytical, geometry from manufacturing simulation	
SNESYS	FZG/FVA	Worm Gears, acc DIN	
© RWTH Aachen University		RWITH AACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 3





















Test Case 1, Parallel Axes: Tooth Root Stress Analysis – Rolling Position 0-43





Test Case 1, Parallel Axes: Tooth Root Stress Analysis – Rolling Position 73-94





Test Case 1, Parallel Axes: Tooth Root Stress Analysis – Rolling Position 123-150








Test Case 2, Intersecting Axes, Pinion : Tooth Root Stress Analysis – Rolling Position 0-32





Test Case 2, Intersecting Axes, Pinion : Tooth Root Stress Analysis – Rolling Position 63-78





Test Case 2, Intersecting Axes, Pinion : Tooth Root Stress Analysis – Rolling Position 108-132







MPC of an Injection Moulding Process -From physical Modelling to Model-based Control

Reiter, M.

Abel, D.

Hopmann, C.

Reßmann, A.

Keywords:

Model Predictive Control, Process Modeling and Identification, Cavity Pressure Control, Injection Moulding

Abstract

Today's manufacturing systems are getting more and more complex. High-level control algorithms, such as Model Predictive Control, potentially allow for making use of rising computational power. Through the use of mathematical process models, a controller can be tailored to fit a specific process more closely than it would be possible with classical PID controllers, allowing for better and more precise control.

Many production systems – such as the injection moulding machine considered here - can be equipped with interchangeable tools (in this case moulds) that have significant influence on process behaviour. As the machines built-in control systems are typically developed independently of the tools, challenges arise in adjusting the process model to the combination of machine and mould. Although the process behaviour is qualitatively similar for different combinations, significant quantitative differences are to be expected.

In order to automatically adjust the process model and to allow for the use of the model in a Model Predictive Controller, a procedure for identifying the behaviour of an injection moulding process has been developed in cooperation between the Institute for Automatic Control (IRT) and the Institute of Plastics Processing (IKV) [HO2013]. The identification procedure can be carried out in an operational state that is close to regular operation and therefore is potentially embeddable into a real-life workflow. It is based on a physically motivated grey-box model. In a previous contribution, a process model of an injection moulding process was identified. Based on the identified model, now a Model Predictive Controller is implemented and first control results are shown.

Bibliography

[HO2013] Hopmann, Ch.; Reßmann, A.; Reiter, M.; Zöller, D.; Abel, D (2013): Strategy for Robust System Identification for Model Predictive Control of Cavity Pressure in an Injection Moulding Process, The 11th International Symposium of Measurement Technology and Intelligent Instruments.

	MPC of an Injection Moulding Process - From physical Modelling to Model-based Control			
	DiplIng. M. Reiter, Prof. DrIng. D. Abel Institute for Automatic Control (IRT), RWTH Aachen University Prof. DrIng. Ch. Hopmann, DiplIng. Axel Reßmann Institute of Plastics Processing (IKV) at RWTH Aachen University			
	23.09.2013			
© RWTH Aachen University	RINTHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION			























ICMEg – the Integrated Computational Materials Engineering expert group a new European coordination action

Schmitz, G. J. G.J.Schmitz@access.rwth-aachen.de

Prahl, U. Ulrich.Prahl@iehk.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords:

Integrated Computational Materials Engineering, ICME, network of stakeholders, standardization, platform concepts, processing/microstructure/property relationships

Abstract

Based on the results of the first funding period of the CoE, the ICMEg proposal has been submitted to the European commission towards establishing a global standard for information exchange in Integrated Computational Materials Engineering- ICME. Communication standards and protocols shall be established at the scale of the process/resp. the component, at the scale of the microstructure as also for the basic underlying thermodynamic models and for models at the electronic, atomistic and mesoscopic scales. After shortly identifying the benefits of Integrated Computational Materials Engineering ICME in general, the presentation will briefly describe the ICMEg consortium, outline the vision and mission of this project and detail its practical implementation.

Acknowledgement

The ICMEg proposal is based on results of the first funding period of the Cluster of Excellence "Integrative Production Technologies for High Wage Countries", which was funded by the Deutsche Forschungs-gemeinschaft. The proposal eventually has been formulated and submitted during the ongoing second period of this Cluster of Excellence. The ICMEg project itself now is funded by the European Commission under grant NMP3-CA-2013-606711 and will formally be launched in October 2013.

Bibliography

- [ICMEG13] www.ICMEG.eu the "Integrated Computational Materials Engineering expert group" -website (under construction)
- [NRC_08] National Research Council: Integrated Computational Materials Engineering: A Transformational Discipline for Improved Competitiveness and National Security; National Academic Press, Washington, D. C. (2008), ISBN: 0-309-12000-4.
- [SCHM12] G.J. Schmitz and U.Prahl (eds): Integrative Computational Materials Engineering- Concepts and applications of a modular simulation platform Wiley VCH Verlag Weinheim, ISBN 978-3-527-33081-2 (2012)
- [ICME13] Integrated Computational Materials Engineering (ICME): Implementing ICME in the Aerospace, Automotive, and Maritime Industries: A study organized by the TMS, TMS Warrendale (2013) www.tms.org



"I" like integrative, integrated, integration, integr*: a mathematics, natural sciences, engineering and oth communication using a standard for information ex integration in "time" the word history seems adequate experience.	ppears in different contexts ranging from social life, ners. Key issue for social integration is e.g. change - the common language. With respect to ate, while integration of knowledge over time leads t
"C" like computational, computers, computation, co on a computer like simulations , handling of large d computer control and steering, storage of data and reality , computer games, e-learning etc.	<i>omput*</i> : in short: anything which can be performed latasets, description of iterative processes, d knowledge, mimicking of real processes in virtual
<i>"M" like materials:</i> classification of materials may be rubbers, metallic alloys, ceramics, concrete, biomate individual shape like bulk materials, thick films, thin properties like e.g. conductors, isolators, structural	be on the basis of different types like e.g. plastics, erials, composites. Other schemes hold for their films, coatings or for specific functionalities and materials and many, many others.
"E" like engineering: all activities related to design , assembly, operation and repair/recycling of mate consumables, investment goods, public infrastructu	, construction , manufacture , production , erials, components and systems e.g. for re or exploitation of raw materials and resources.
© RWTH Aachen University	Page UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

binary	keywords
	grain size, grain boundaries, local and global crystallographic orientations i.e. "texture", phase-fractions, precipitates, dislocations and defects, "microsegregation", solution hardening, composition, heating/cooling rates, heat treatments, pressure/atmospheric conditions, specific deformation are recrystallisation procedures, external electric or magnetic fields, ultras, pressure/agitation, seeding particles, epitaxy
IM	metal-matrix composites, reinforced prices like cermets, textile- or steel- reinforced concrete, reinforced polymers
IE	
IC	
CE	Components, properties of components, distortions,, fatigue, failure
	Calphad, MD-simulations, Phase-Field, Cellular Automata





Why ICME?

a) because it can be done right now (...and was not possible earlier)!

Currently all these approaches have reached a level allowing for valuable contributions to modern engineering tasks within knowledge driven production models. The capabilities of the respective software tools and the present availability of computational power make efforts towards the integration of all these approaches possible, meaningful and timely.

© RWTH Aachen University
RWTH Aachen University
OF PRODUCTION

Page 8

History of ICME

In view of the

"C"

in ICME:

ICME history starts about the 1960s

i.e. about 50 years ago



R

JIVER

© RWTH Aachen University



Page 9

RODUCTION





Why ICME?

a) because it can be done right now (...and was not possible earlier) !

Currently all these approaches have reached a level allowing for valuable contributions to modern engineering tasks within knowledge driven production models. The capabilities of the respective software tools and the present availability of computational power make efforts towards the integration of all these approaches possible, meaningful and timely.

b) because benefits are to be expected

"Integrated computational materials engineering (ICME) as an emerging discipline aiming to integrate computational materials science tools into a holistic system will accelerate materials development, transform the engineering design optimization process, and unify design and manufacturing." [NRC_2008]



Benefits of ICME...



Global Optimum—the Nash equilibrium

The optimum of a process chain might

- and will (!!) -

differ from a chain of individually optimised process steps



Ignore the blonde! scene taken from "A beautiful mind"

© RWTH Aachen University















page 22









ociated members/ international steering committee					
partner	country	type	contact		
National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST)	US	Government	Dr. James A .Warren		
Thermo-Calc Inc	US	SME	Dr. Paul Mason		
Bundesamt für Materialforschung (BAM)	Germany	Government	Prof. Pedro D. Portella		
Tata Consultancy Services (TCS)	India	Industry	Dr. A.K. Singh		
CTC Solutions	Japan	Industry	Dr. S. Nomoto.		




CSP-2: How to move forward in production theory development?

Potente, T.

Hauptvogel, A.

Keller, M.

Rosenberg, M.

Prote, J.

Wolff, B.

Keywords:

production theory, production function, viable system model, value chain

Abstract

Developing a production theory is no easy feat. Starting from the 50s, researchers started to develop production theories (e.g., Gutenberg, Heinen, Kloock, Matthes, etc.) that explain the complex relationship between input factors and output. Since 2006, the Cluster of Excellence "Integrative Production Technology for High-Wage Countries" of RWTH Aachen University researches organizational methods and technology to be able to (1) offer customized products at competitive prices and (2) quickly adapt to the market while assuring constant product properties [1]. To leverage the existing results of the first research period, a holistic production theory is needed that takes the complexity of today's production in high-wage countries into account. To address this challenge and develop a new theoretical framework, we build upon existing concepts that are able to cope with today's complexity in production [2], [3], [4]. Furthermore, we focus on the integration and combination of existing theories to ensure usability and credibility across many research and practical fields.

Bibliography

- [1] C. Brecher, Integrative Produktionstechnik für Hochlohnländer. Heidelberg: Springer-Verlag, 2011.
- [2] H. Dyckhoff, Produktionstheorie: Grundzüge industrieller Produktionswirtschaft. Springer-Verlag, 2006.
- [3] E. Gutenberg, Produktion Grundlagen der Betriebswirtschaftslehre. Springer-Verlag, 1983.
- [4] S. Beer, Diagnosing the System for Organisations. Wiley, 1985.















Workshop with CoE experts kicked off several work streams to approximate CoE production theory development



Workshop stream 1: Corporate functions and theoretical foundations Corporate functions **Theoretical foundations** Porter's value chain model identifies the Theoretical foundations of demonstrators extremely diverse from purely technical most important corporate functions such as logistics, production, finance, etc. models to economic theories First results reveal that the demonstrator First results reveal at least a limited number addresses challenges of different corporate of theoretical clusters such as process, functions machine and measurement models ----0-0-© RWTH Aachen University Page 8

Workshop stream 2: Theory development and combination of theories

Theory development

- Classical theories describe closed systems with clearly defined boundaries
- Modern theories describe systems with high uncertainty, system dynamics or turbulences
- Production theories are either too narrow (not generalizable) or rely on black boxes to describe complex transformation processes

We will use a twofold approach, comparable to classical mechanics and quantum mechanics in the natural sciences:

- Interdependencies between sub-systems should be described with simple relationships (i.e. Guttenberg functions)
- Influence factors and disturbances should be described with cybernetic means

© RWTH Aachen University

Combination of theories

- In the cluster of excellence, researchers of different disciplines rely on different grounding theories for their work
- Units of measure and scales are very different and we ware faced with the challenge of how to combine the different theories into one common approach

We need to integrate different theories horizontally and vertically by overcoming boundaries:

- Identify representative components that can be transferred to another theory or scale
- Homogenization of structures to identify common elements of complex structures that can be simplified



Production Theory Team Projectcoordinator: Deputy coordinator: Prof. Günther Schuh Dipl.-Ing. Till Potente Institutes and People: Werkzeugmaschinenlabor (WZL) Dipl.-Ing. Dipl.-Wirt.Ing. Arne Bohl Dipl.-Ing. Annika Hauptvogel (Projektleiterin) a.hauptvogel@wzl.rwth-aachen.de **WIN** Dipl.-Wi.-Ing. Michael Keller Dipl.-Ing. Bartholomäus Wolff +49 241 80-23619 keller@win.rwth-aachen.de B.Wolff@wzl.rwth-aachen.de Dipl.-Wirt.-Ing. M.Sc. Jan-Philipp Prote M. Sc. Marius Rosenberg J.Prote@wzl.rwth-aachen.de rosenberg@win.rwth-aachen.de RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION © RWTH Aachen University Page 10 Thank you for your attention ! RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION © RWTH Aachen University Page 11

Analysis of friction stir welded blanks made from DC04 mild steel and aluminum AA6016

Mertin, C. mertin@ibf.rwth-aachen.de

Mosecker, L. linda.mosecker@iehk.rwth-aachen.de

> Naumov, A. naumov@isf.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: dissimilar joint, joining, friction stir welding

Abstract

Due to increasing demands for lightweight structures in automotive applications the use of sheet metal components made from aluminum and steel is a promising approach for weight reduction [HEN11]. However, in conventional fusion welding processes the formation of intermetallic phases due to the metallurgical affinity of aluminum and iron is a serious problem [SPR11]. Friction stir welding (FSW) is a solid-state welding technology [THO95], whereby the formation of intermetallic phases is reduced to a minimum [JIA04]. Within the work butt joints were produced using sheet metals of the aluminum alloy AA6016-T4 and DC04 mild steel with a thickness of 1 mm. The produced dissimilar joints showed approximately 85 % of the tensile strength of the base material AA6016. In metallographic investigation it was found that during welding the microstructure of the aluminum base material changes due to plastic deformation and increasing temperature [MIS05]. In order to find a proper explanation of the reduction in tensile strength, short time heat treatment experiments in the temperature range between 250 °C and 450 °C were carried out using aluminum base material both, with and without preliminary prestrain. With additional hardness measurements the change of mechanical properties in the contact zone of both base materials and in the heat affected zone was examined.

Bibliography

[HEN11]	Henning F., Moeller E. (2011): Handbuch Leichtbau – Methoden, Werkstoffe, Fertigung, Carl Hanser Verlag, München.	
[JIA04]	Jiang W.H., Kovacevic R. (2004): Feasibility study of friction stir welding of 6061-T6 aluminium alloy with AISI 1018 steel, Vol. 218, Part B: J. Enginee-ring Manufacture, Proc. Instn Mech. Engrs.	
[MIS05]	Mishra R.S., Ma Z.Y. (2005): Friction stir welding and processing, R 50, 1-78, Materials Science and Engineering.	
[SPR11]	Springer H.J. (2011): Fundamental research into the role of intermetallic pha- ses in joining of aluminium alloys to steel, Bochum.	
[THO95]	Thomas W.M., Nicholas E.D., Needham J.C., Murch M.G., Tempe-Smith P., Dawes C.J. (1995): Friction Welding, U.S. Patent 5,460,317.	



Outline 1. Motivation and topics 2. State of the art 3. Characterization of friction stir welded blanks 4. Hardness measurement 5. Short-time heat treatment of aluminum alloy 6. Conclusion and outlook



- → increasing aluminum components in cars
- hybrid blanks for a new lightweight design with respect to optimized loading

What is necessary?

- joining technology for aluminum and steel
- basic knowledge about local characteristics of hybrid blanks
- basic knowledge about forming limits and forming characteristics of hybrid blanks



100

50

0

50

1990

2012

1)

Page 3

2020*











Characterization of friction stir welded blanks (II) AA6016 DC04 1 mm A-1 B-1 200 µn 200 um Tensile tests and microstructure analysis FSW blanks show ~ 85 % tensile strength compared to aluminum base material crack appears in transition between TMAZ and HAZ FSW blanks show different zones of microstructure small steel particle in aluminum // no failures © RWTH Aachen University Page 10 R RODUCTION **Outline**

- 1. Motivation and topics
- 2. State of the art
- 3. Characterization of friction stir welded blanks
- 4. Hardness measurement
- 5. Short-time heat treatment of aluminum alloy
- 6. Conclusion and outlook

© RWTH Aachen University









Short-time heat treatment of aluminum alloy

Short-time heat treatment:

- at T > 250°C: reduction of tensile strength due to dissolution of (Mg_2Si) -precipitations¹⁾
- nearly same results for different duration of heat treatment
- influence of deformation (pre-strain) still unclear



© RWTH Aachen University	RNTHAACHEN HOUSE Page 16 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION
	6. Conclusion and outlook
	5. Short-time heat treatment of aluminum alloy
	4. Hardness measurement
	3. Characterization of friction stir welded blanks
	2. State of the art
	1. Motivation and topics

Conclusion and outlook

Summary

- FSW of DC04 and AA6016 successful
- characteristic microstructure development due to process temperature and deformation
- characteristic hardness profile of welding zone due to process temperature and deformation
- dissolution of (Mg₂Si)-precipitations due to heat treatment leads to a change of mechanical properties

Further investigations

- further investigations of the effects of heat and deformation
- start conductive-assisted FSW
 - find parameter-set
 - different tools (material, geometry)

© RWTH Aachen University

Page 17

RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION



Benefits and Barriers of Interdisciplinary Work. Supporting and investigating interdisciplinarity.

Schaar, A. K. schaar@comm.rwth-aachen.de

Calero Valdez, A. calero-valdez@comm.rwth-aachen.de

> Ziefle, M. ziefle@comm.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords:

Interdisciplinarity, Interdisciplinary Innovation Management, Clusters of Excellence, Publication Network Analysis

Abstract

In two qualitative interview studies benefits and barriers of interdisciplinary work in a research cluster has been investigated, as well as using a visualization of the publication behavior.

First findings indicate that the primary motivator for interdisciplinary collaboration is intrinsic motivation and curiosity for the other disciplines. Interdisciplinary work uniquely allows unite knowledge and comprehend complexity beyond the scope of disciplinary research. Problems were seen in the missing language that allows interdisciplinary communication. Missing depth of research as well as defined interfaces between subjects poses another problem, as well as a tight schedule.

Furthermore in an interview study regarding the usefulness and interpretability of publication visualization motives and barriers to use such a visualization were investigated. In particular the most often mentioned motive for using such visualization was the motivation that could be drawn from it. Furthermore it would allow to plan publications ahead of time and give retrospective insights into one's and other's publication behavior. As barriers the amount of missing information in this particular information was mentioned. This included the quality of publications and the range of possible interpretation of such graphs. Some participants were sure, that such visualization would not change the behavior of established scientists. Measures to improve both visualization and accompanying services were derived from these findings.

Bibliography

Calero-Valdez A., Schaar, A.K., Holzinger A., Ziefle M., Jeschke S., Brecher C. (2012): Using Mixed Node Publication Network Graphs for Analyzing Success in Interdisciplinary Teams In: R. Huang et al. (Eds.): AMT 2012, Lecture Notes in Computer Science 7669 (pp. 606–617). Heidelberg, Berlin: Springer. ISBN 978-3-642-35235-5

Klein J.-T (1990): A taxonomy of interdisciplinarity: History, Theory, and Practice. Detroit, Michigan: Wayene State University Press.

Lattuca L.R. (2002): Learning Interdisciplinarity. Sociocultural Perspectives on Academic Work. In: The Journal of Higher Education, 73 (6), pp. 711-739.

Repko A. (2008): Interdisciplinary research. Process and Theory. Los Angeles, London, New Delhi, Singapore: Sage Publications

Schaar A.K, Calero Valdez A., Ziefle, M. (2013): Publication Network Visualisation as an Approach for Interdisciplinary Innovation Management. Full paper at the IEEE International Professional Communication Conference (IPCC 2013).



Benefits and Barriers of Interdisciplinary Work. Supporting & Investigating Interdisciplinarity

CSP1: Scientific Cooperation Engineering Anne Kathrin Schaar, M.A. Dipl.-Inform. André Calero Valdez Prof. Martina Ziefle

Aachen, 23th September 2013

n-Co







What is interdisciplinarity?

- No unique definition
- Broad definition: "communication and collaboration across academic disciplines" (Jacobs/Frickel 2009)
- Narrow definition: "Interdisciplinary studies is a process of answering a question, solving a problem, or addressing a topic that is too broad or complex to be dealt with adequately by a single discipline and draws on disciplinary perspectives and integrates their insights to produce a more comprehensive understanding or cognitive advancement" (Repko 2008)
- Four forms of interdisciplinary work (Julie Thompson-Klein 1990):
 - -Borrowing (of analytic tools from other disciplines)
 - -Solving Problems (with no intention of achieving a conceptual unification of knowledge)
 - -Increase consistency of subjects or methods (partial overlapping of disciplines in the same field)

HCIC -Human

Human-Computer

HCIC -Human-Computer Interaction Center

-Emergence of an interdiscipline

What is interdisciplinary success?

- OECD 1998: "highly competent proficiency in a single discipline is the only acceptable basis for interdisciplinary success"
- Lamont (2009): Interdisciplinarity = separate criterion for excellence: Combining traditional standards of disciplinary excellence with interdisciplinary presents a greater challenge, ..., because 'expert generalist criteria ... have to be met at the same time' (Lamont 2009 p. 210)

Problem for interdisciplinary work:

- Sticking to the disciplines punishes the boundary-crossing activities because they are often not perceived as cutting edge research in the home discipline
- "Reception problem" (Salter and Hearn 1996)
- Daily work is burdened by the different perception of quality/success

Framework conditions for the Aachen House of Production:

Criteria: publications, third-party funding, patents, completed dissertations

RNTHAACHEN

RYNTHAACHEN

Interdisciplinary success – What is relevant for us?

- Criteria must be fulfilled
- Interdisciplinary Innovation Management: Focus on publications (first), because they are publically available
- To be considered:
 - Concept of successful can differ between the disciplines and cause difficulties in the daily work
 - Different concepts of success might cause different goals
 - It is to be expected that results are not easy to be placed in public ("Reception Problem")
 - Conflict between interdisciplinary idea and individual goals

Investigating interdisciplinary work in research cluster

- Our approach: Combination of:
 - User-centered design of a publication visualization tool for steering, selfmeasurement and scientific analysis of interdisciplinary teams
 - accompanying research in form of surveys, interviews, user tests

Recent research:

Study 1: User-centered design of publication visualization tool: "Evaluation of the publication network visualization approach for interdisciplinary teams"

Study 2: Accompanying research: "Perceived Benefits and Barriers of interdisciplinary work"

RNTHAACHEN

HCIC -Human-Computer Interaction Center





Pros and cons of visualization tool

Summary:

- Positive basic attitude
- Potential is especially seen in general information about the group, retrospective analysis and planning
- The main cons are missing information, especially about the quality about the publications

Wishes & suggestions for improvement

- Ease of use
- Continuous analysis via time factor
- Integration of more information (outlet, impact factor)
- Filter-function
- Integration of more sociometric data (project, offices etc.)

Study 2: Evaluation of benefits and barriers of interdisciplinary work



Background: In literature there are named several benefits and barriers within the context of interdisciplinary teams. It is necessary to find out whether they are also true for large scale research clusters

HCIC -Human-Computer Interaction Center RYNTHAACHEN

- Focus: Identification of benefits and barriers revealed within the Aachen House of Production
- Method: Interview; N=6
- Research questions:
 - What are the pros and cons of interdisciplinary work?

HCIC -Human-Computer Interaction Center

 Is the innovative potential of interdisciplinary teams higher than of others?

RVNTHAA



Benefits and Barriers of interdisciplinary work

Summary:

Benefits:

- Main benefits are personal development (broadening own horizon) and curiosity hunger for knowledge (intrinsic motivation)
- Interdisciplinary character of work offers the chance to capture the complexity of production technology
- The work within the X-Cluster was perceived to be innovative

Barriers:

- Main barrier is the heterogeneous language and Definition of terms
- A lot of discussions/things remain superficial, because there is not the space/time to slip into other disciplines topics
- Changing workforce enhances the knowledge exchange and cooperation

Lessons learned and outlook on future work

- Publication visualization = promising approach
- It is necessary to follow a user-centered design approach to design a useful tool
- Knowledge exchange is wanted and welcome
- The mutual understanding and lack of time charges the interdisciplinary workflow

Overall result:

It is important to learn more about the differences between the disciplines (language, methods, success criteria) to find an adequate way to deal with them

Future work:

- Study "scientific success criteria within the cluster"
- Workshop "publishing interdisciplinary"
- Further development of publication visualization on the "Scientific Cooperation Portal"




What is interdisciplinarity?		
What is interdisciplinary succes?	→	External factors
What are benefits of interdisciplinary work in the cluster?		
What are barriers of interdisciplinary work cluster?	→	Internal factors
How can we support interdisciplinary work within the cluster?		
		HCIC - Human-Computer Human-Computer

Interdisciplinarity vs. Mulit- and Transdisciplinarity



- Multidisciplinarity: Disciplinary juxtaposition within a topic without structural cooperation or synthesis across disciplines
- Transdisciplinarity: Disciplinary boarders as well as boarders between science and the outside world are crossed by integrating additional stakeholder



Adaptive Function Templates for Improved Function Structure Applicability

Heller, J. E. heller@ikt.rwth-aachen.de

Feldhusen, J. feldhusen@ikt.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: Function Structures, Koller Methodology, Adaptive Function Templates

Abstract

In early phases of product development processes, the concept of function structures is well-established. It is used to clarify product functions and in addition forms the basis for the generation of solution principles by systematically combining them with morphological boxes.

However, their application is not only beneficial and three main disadvantages can be elaborated. First, function structures characteristically depend on the background of their operator. Second, they are non-reversible. It is facile to hypothesize function structures with existing products in mind and moreover to turn already given structures into products. Nevertheless, with unidentified context and main functions there is no unambiguous method to set up function structures in hindsight. Third, function structures are difficult to apply with mixed levels of product embodiment.

An improved approach is presented to overcome those limitations. It is based on function templates that are related to existing function carriers. This is realized by setting up function blocks consisting of the conventional function description and in addition to that of function carriers and corresponding sub-functions. Algorithmically, the level of detail of the templates is adapted to match that of the traditionally conceived functions. Mixed levels get controllable through the adaptive nature of the templates. By providing information on the context due to function carrier inclusion, solutions get traceable and pre-created templates help generating unambiguous structures.

Bibliography

Koller, R. (1998). Konstruktionslehre für den Maschinenbau: Grundlagen zur Neu- und Weiterentwicklung technischer Produkte (4th ed). Berlin: Springer.

Pahl, G., Beitz, W., Feldhusen, J., & Grote, K.-H. (2007). Engineering Design: A Systematic Approach. London: Springer.

Heller, J. E., Feldhusen, J. (2013): Enhanced Function Structure Applicability through Adaptive Function Templates. Intl. Conference on Industrial, Systems and Design Eng. Athens.



Motivation



We want to make the concept of function structures applicable for concept generation of machine tools.

© RWTH Aachen University

















© RWTH Aachen University

Page 9

RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION



Function Structures for Manufacturing starting points for function structures modelling along technology chain technology box

Turning

flow of

workpiece RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Page 11

© RWTH Aachen University









	What I talked about	
	Functions in SED + one possible approach (Koller)	
	 Challenges for its application (3 aspects) 	
	 Need for systematic approach for machine tools conceptualisation 	
	Adaptive Function Templates	
	What is still left to do	
	 Validation of AFTs in industrial application 	
	Implementation in software tool	
	Automated de- and recomposition	
	Future: expand the concept to other areas	
© RWTH Aachen University	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 1

Performance Measurement within Interdisciplinary Clusters of Excellence

Welter, F. florian.welter@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

Jooß, C. claudia.jooß@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

Vossen, R. rene.vossen@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

Jeschke, S. sabina.jeschke@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords:

Performance Measurement, Clusters of Excellence, Key Performance Indicators, Balanced Scorecard

Abstract

Adequate concepts of performance measurement depict a continuous challenge for promoters and science managers of interdisciplinary clusters of excellence. This can be explained by an augmenting degree of complexity with regard to scientific structures and scientific behavior in interdisciplinary forms of collaborative research, demanding tailormade solutions to reflect and improve interdisciplinary scientific performance. Performance measurement aims at initiating learning processes through the reflection of performance on different organizational levels, such as the individual scientist, scientific teams or the entire cluster. In this context, the definition and collection of scientific key performance indicators (KPIs) is important as a base for steering decisions in interdisciplinary scientific collaborations. This includes indicators to measure e. g. the quality of scientific exchange, output and sharing of information in contrast to e. g. classical monetary indicators of profit-organizations.

During the presentation, the focus is set on the implemented cluster-specific Balanced Scorecard of the Cluster of Excellence Integrative Production Technology for High-Wage Countries. Here insights about central research results and future challenges of interdisciplinary scientific performance measurement are presented.

Bibliography

Bergmann, M. (2010): Methoden transdisziplinärer Forschung. Ein Überblick mit Anwendungsbeispielen. Frankfurt am Main: Campus-Verlag.

Bortz, J.; Döring, N. (2006): Forschungsmethoden und Evaluation für Human- und Sozialwissenschaftler. Heidelberg: Springer.

Cohen, J. (1988): Statistical Power Analysis for Behavioral Sciences. Hillsdale: Lawrence Earlbaum Associates.

Defila R., Di Giulio A. (1998): Interdisziplinarität und Disziplinarität. In: Olbertz J.-H. (Hrsg.): Zwischen den Fächern – über den Dingen? Universalisierung versus Spezialisierung akademischer Bildung. Opladen: Leske & Budrich. S.111-137.

DFG/WR – Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft/ Wissenschaftsrat (2010): Begutachtungskriterien Exzellenzcluster. Zweite Programmphase.

Gladen, W. (2002): Performance Measurement als Methode der Unternehmenssteuerung. In: Performance Measurement, Hrsg. v. Fröschle, H.-P. Praxis der Wirtschaftsinformatik, Heft 227, Jahrgang 39: 5 - 16.

Grüning, M. (2002): Performance-Measurement-Systeme – Messung und Steuerung von Unternehmensleistungen. Wiesbaden.

Hilgers, D. (2008): Performance Management – Leistungserfassung und Leistungssteuerung in Unternehmen und öffentlichen Verwaltungen. Wiesbaden.

Hillerbrand, R.; Schneider, C. (2012): Arbeitspapier zur Abgrenzung von zentralen Begrifflichkeiten im Kontext der Exzellenzinitiative an der RWTH Aachen. Unveröffentlicht.

Horváth, P.; Gleich, R.; Voggenreiter, D. (2001): Controlling umsetzen – Fallstudien, Lösungen und Basiswissen. 3. Auflage. Stuttgart: Schäffer-Poeschel.

Horváth, P., Seiter, M. (2009): Performance Measurement. In: Die Betriebswirtschaft, 69. Jg., 2009, Nr. 3, 393 - 414.

Kozielski, S. (2010): Integratives Kennzahlensystem für den Werkzeugbau. Aachen: Apprimus.

Lachnit, L. (1979): Systemorientierte Jahresabschlussanalyse. Wiesbaden.

Mittelstraß, J. (2003): Transdisziplinarität - wissenschaftliche Zukunft und institutionelle Wirklichkeit. Konstanz: Universitätsverlag Konstanz.

Pohl, J. M.; Hanson, C.; Newland J. A.; Cronenwett L. (2010): Unleashing Nurse Practitioners' Potential To Deliver Primary Care and Lead Teams. Health Affairs, 29(5), 900-905.

Weber, J.; Schäffer, U. (2006): Einführung in das Controlling. 11. Auflage. Stuttgart: Schäffer-Poeschel.

Welter, F. (2013): Regelung wissenschaftlicher Exzellenzcluster mittels scorecardbasierter Performancemessung. Norderstedt: Books on Demand.













Agenda		
	Interdisciplinary scientific co-operation in clusters of excellence (CoE)	
	Performance measurement	
	Central aspects of CoE performance measurement	
	Outlook – contemporary funding phase (11/2012-10/2017)	
© RWTH Aachen University	RWITH AACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 6









Exemplary results – key performance indicators (KPI) (a) KPIs were identified by the following steps: Determination after completion of three surveys in the years 2009, 2010 and 2011 $(\emptyset = 111 \text{ participants})$ **Key Performance** Indicators Spearman's rank correlation coefficient calculated with all ordinal scaled variables Comparison of the amount of correlation pairs per indicator Identification of indicators whose size effects were > 0,3 Source: openitmag.com – seo design 2013 (c. f. Bortz/Schuster 2010; Cohen 1988) Applying a **significance test** (α =0,01) RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION © RWTH Aachen University Page 11



Exemplary results – box-plot-diagram (international scientific exchange)



Strengths	Weaknesses/criticism
 Involvement of CoE staff in performance measurement by means of surveys Two types of reference points for 	 Only measurement of cluster-internal performance → Possibilities of external benchmarking?
performance indicators:	
 Comparison of different groups/hierarchies (professors, cluster management board/ICD- deputies, group leaders/chief engineers, research assistants) 	 − Too much emphasis on means of surveys → Implementation of different methods for measurement
 Comparison of time-lines (2009, 2010, 2011) 	 Too many 'soft' performance indicators → Adaption of existing set of indicators
 Feedback and regulation in terms of a cybernetic control loop 	and integration of new indicators
 Initiation of a continuous improvement and organizational learning process 	
RWTH Aachen University	Page 1

Agenda		
	Interdisciplinary scientific co-operation in clusters of excellence (CoE)	
	Performance measurement	
	Central aspects of CoE performance measurement	
	Outlook – contemporary funding phase (11/2012-10/2017)	
© RWTH Aachen University	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 15





Thank you for your attention!

Florian Welter M.A. Tel.: +49-241-8091164 florian.welter@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

Claudia Jooß M.A. Tel.: +49-241-8091163 claudia.jooss@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

Dr. rer. nat. René Vossen Tel.: +49-241-8091161 rene.vossen@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Sabina Jeschke Tel.: +49-241-8091110 sabina.jeschke@ima-zlw-ifu.rwth-aachen.de

© RWTH Aachen University





Simulation-Based Path-Planning for Robot-Machine-Cooperation

Nittinger, J. j.nittinger@wzl.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0)241 80-27592

Keywords:

Simulation, Machining, Robot, Path-Planning

Abstract

Integrating technologies within a machine tool can help increasing productivity by shortening through-put times. Along with the integration of multiple technology modules such as a laser and a milling spindle, there is often the integration of multiple end-effectors which allow simultaneous use of the often expensive technology modules. Besides the possibility of parallel manufacturing on different workpieces, for example with two separate workspaces, it is also desirable to use both end-effectors within one workspace on the same workpiece. However, due to the high level of integration such cooperation scenarios require a high degree of automated path-planning mechanisms that have to be developed specifically for the given machine tool.

This presentation highlights certain aspects that have to be taken into account for developing a control architecture that allows simultaneous machining of a milling spindle and a robot. It proposes a simulation-based path-planning concept and demonstrates the abilities of the developed simulation framework regarding the validation of a cooperation process. While the machine spindle mills a five-axis workpiece the robot tries to debur another section of the moving workpiece.



Agenda			
1 Introduction			
2 Current Work			
3 Demonstration			
© WZL/Fraunhofer IPT	Fraunhofer	CV745 RWITHAACHEN	Seite 2

Agenda			
1 Introduction			
2 Current Work			
3 Demonstration			
© WZL/Fraunhofer IPT	Fraunhofer	CZZAD RWITHAACHEN	Seite 3








Agenda			
1 Introduction			
2 Current Work			
3 Demonstration			
© WZL/Fraunhofer IPT	Fraunhofer	CVZ45 RWITHAACHEN	Seite 9







1 Introduction		
2 Current Work		
3 Demonstration		

Demonstration	Demonstrati	on	
© WZL/Fraunhofer IPT	Fraunhofer	CVZAL RWITHAACHEN	Seite 16



Manufacturing of lattice structures in solid shells by Selective Laser Melting

Hinke, C.

Abstract

Lattice structures belong to the group of complex structures that can be manufactured in almost any arbitrary shape by Selective Laser Melting (SLM). Particularly for light-weight applications the outstanding mechanical properties of lattice structures such as the high ratio of stiffness / weight are from great interest. Current investigations are undertaken to comprehensively understand the behavior of lattice structures under various loading to explore the design freedom given by SLM. This presentation presents first results about the compressive behavior of f2ccz-type lattice structures in solid shells made of 316L-powder. To determine the influence of side shells and top shells compressive tests are performed on specimens with and without top shells according to DIN 50134. Transition layers are needed to overcome process restrictions to manufacture shells on lattice structures without build errors. A comparison of different types of transition layers situated between lattice structures and top shells is given. Derived from this, design rules to manufacture solid shells on lattice structures with varying cell widths are presented to improve stability and surface quality of top shells.







Application Group	Examples
Lightweight	Aircraft wing panels, robotic arm, automobile hood
Energy absorption	Automobile bumpers, blast shock wave protection
Heat exchangers	Heat sinks for electronic components, transpiration coolers
Sound control	Sound dampers, silencers for jet engine intakes
Vibration control	Gas-tight seals between engine stages in turbines, machine housings
Medical implants	Bone implants
Buoyancy	Floater for measuring fill levels in hot or corrosive media







Transition laver	CAD model	Added Volume Imm ³]	Supported area [mm ⁻]	Max-gap distance between supported	areas [mm]	$\underset{ability}{Manufactur}$	Mechanical stability	Transferability
1		40.41	12.03		2	45°	+	f ₂ ccz + fcc - D-bcc -
2		37.72	4.26		7.15	25°	+	f ₂ ccz + fcc 0 D-bcc -
З	阂	47.44	14.37		4.76	35°	+	f ₂ ccz + fcc 0 D-bcc -
4	K	57.70	17.51		1.38	35°	+	f ₂ ccz + fcc 0 D-bcc -







































Human Factors and Quality Management: "I" and "Q" in complex supply chain systems

Stiller, S.

Abstract

Supply chains are not only technical but socio-technical systems: Besides the availability and quality of information all decisions in supply chains are influenced by the character and personality profiles of the decision makers. Examinations of business processes are only successful by considering these human factors. However, guality management models which take human information process capabilities and character into account do not exist. Hence, a new business game - the << Intelligence and Quality Game (IQ-Game)>> is developed by WZL and HCIC of RWTH Aachen which supports the understanding of complex cross-company processes and effects. Its concept is based on Goldratt's Game which simulates fluctuations in multi-stage production lines. Because of the restricted playing possibilities, the Goldratt Game is not adequate to achieve the research objectives. In IQ-Game player's options are enlarged when he has to manage supply chains including decisions on purchase order quantity, inspection planning and production quality. Moreover, the business game takes credit to both – technical cause and effect relations considering the guality in supply chains and human factors of the deciders. Before the simulation game starts, all participants have to fill out questionnaires from which their personality profile (such as social skills and risk aversion) can be deducted. The overall target of the business game is to identify a convenient information quality level for human decision making. By simulating possible events in supply chains, the available information and KPIs for the deciders can varied in between each game round, while the overall success is measured on financial success in terms of profit. The study gives proof to the fact that both disciplines human an life sciences and quality management are essential for the successful management of supply chains.







Goldratt's Game - the challenge of variance in process chains A quality simulation game – how Goldratt Game works? 50 Rules of the Game 1. A supply chain consists of two stations are regarded. 2. At the beginning of the game each station starts with an inventory of 4 products. 3. In each round the number on the rolled die represents the required amount of products. The forwarded amount of products to the next station is the minimum of the number on the 4. die and the current product amount in the inventory. (Reason for the supply fluctuation) Result: If you play 40 rounds you won't reach about 110 products in station 2 (3,5 ·40 = 110) Station 1 Station 2 Supplier for station 1 with an F endless inventory Because of the supply fluctuation you will reach less than 110 products = 3.5 $\mu = 3,5$ **UNIVERSITY** HEN HOUS © WZL/Fraunhofer IPT R Page 4 RODUCTION

The Goldratt Game needs to be extended in order to fit to the research objectives














Summary and outlook



Which are the next steps?

- The Goldratt Game simulates the supply fluctuations but neglects many other aspects like product quality, incoming goods inspection, ...
- The developed IQ-Game extends the Goldratt Game adding decision possibilities about quality politics and human profiling
- Next the developed business game should implemented in a useroptimized operator interface and validated
- In the future variations in the business game should be analyze to discover possibilities for improvements and to reach the research objectives

© WZL/Fraunhofer IPT



Page 11

Integrated Product and Tool Development

Aryobsei, A. +49 (0)241 80-28205

Keywords:

Integrated Product Development, Simultaneous Engineering, Tool Development Method

In the course of cost pressure and rising product customization, the effective coordination between different areas of the process chain has become a substantial strategic success factor. Since tool making often is the critical path between product development and serial production, the design and arrangement of the interface between product and tooling has significant influence on time, cost and quality. Recent studies, however, show a deficit in the compliance with costs, schedules and quality, which is particularly based on errors and insufficient coordination within the interface between product and tooling.

The purpose of this project is the extension of existing methods within the product development processes regarding the aspect of producibility, especially concerning tooling. Thereby product developers should get additional methodological elements to the prevailing product development process methods that help to achieve the goal of an integrated product and tool development. This method includes the formalization of interactions between product and tool, the identification of the solution space as well as an approach for reducing the identified solution space systematically. The developed method will be validated in selected companies.







Research question: Main and secondary research questions







Summary & Outlook

Main results

- Concept of the methodology for the Integrated Product an Tool Development
- Database analysis

Future results

- Further detailing of the methodology
- Validation of the methodology in various tooling firms

© RWTH Aachen University



RVII

Page 6

RODUCTION

Simulative study of the interrelationships of a multi-stage supply chain, taking into account the product quality

Groten, M. Gro@fir.rwth-aachen.de

Runge, S. Ru@fir.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: supply chain, simulation, procurement, product quality

Production systems are exposed to increasing uncertainty and susceptibility. Nowadays inter-company relationships regarding different demand situations combined with changing product quality issues between different companies have not been investigated intensively yet. With the simulation of a multi-stage supply chain it will be possible to understand the interrelationships between varying quality issues in a supply chain, combined with different demand scenarios. To reach this, the method of design of experiments will be applied. In a first step the target of the simulated system is to reach minimum stock values while having a minimum amount of stock out situations. In a second step price functions will be added to the model, so that it will be possible to simulate conditions in different industry sectors. The results which will be obtained in these experiments will be used for the experimental design in the demonstration factory on RWTH Campus Cluster Logistics. A real multi-stage supply chain will be built up using different ERP-Systems at RWTH Campus Cluster Logistics. Due to the obtained results from the previous simulations a more effective way of experimental design will be guaranteed.



genda	
1 Introduction	
2 Project Status	
3 Outlook	
WTH Aachen University	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE



Agenda				
1 Introduction				
2 Project Status				
3 Outlook				
RWTH Aachen University		RWITH/ UNIV	ACHEN HOUSE /ERSITY OF PRODUC	Pa
ariable parameter	s in the virtual su	upply chain so	cenario	
	Deliveries: - variable replacement times - variable divery time - variable delivery time - variable quality - variable quality detection - Variable disposition methods	Demands: - variable demands - exchange of information regarding demand with variable advance and variable accuracy		
Data generator			Data generator	

© RWTH Aachen University

229

Page 5

RWTHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION









Modern information and communication technologies form the basis of a cyber physical production system (CPS)



Additive manufacturing of automatically optimized profile extrusion dies

Yesildag, N. yesildag@ikv.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0) 241 80-27271

Keywords:

Additive Manufacturing, Profile extrusion die, Selective Laser Melting, Surface Finishing

The design and manufacture of profile extrusion dies is characterised by costly running-intrials before the start of production. Significant cost and time savings can be achieved by shifting these running-in-trials on the computer. For this reason, the Chair for Computational Analysis of Technical Systems (CATS) and the Institute of Plastics Processing (IKV) developed in the first phase of the Cluster of Excellence an optimisation framework for the automated optimisation of the flow channel geometry in profile extrusion dies. The simulation-based, virtual optimisation, however, often leads to complex flow channel geometries with free-form surfaces. Therefore, conventional manufacturing techniques are fast approaching their limits and are often not applicable.

Against this background, the manufacturing of profile extrusion dies by Selective Laser Melting (SLM) is studied. The SLM process has the potential to economically manufacture dies with any complexity in short times. A major challenge here is to ensure a sufficient surface quality in the flow channel. The process-related roughness of SLM surfaces does not meet the high demands that are placed on the surface quality of extrusion dies. In a first step, therefore, appropriate strategies for the reworking of flow channel surfaces in SLM tools, that are economically applicable to complex free-form surfaces, will be investigated.

Bibliography

Diatlov, A.; Buchbinder, D.; Meiners, W.; Wissenbach, K.; Bültmann, J. (2011): Towards surface topography: Quantification of Selective Laser Melting (SLM) built parts, 595-602, Proceedings of the 5th International Conference on Advanced Research in Virtual and Rapid Prototyping

Michaeli W, Hopmann Ch, Windeck C, Kremer C, Elgeti S, Probst M (2011): Comparing automated die optimisation with reality, Proceedings of the 27th Annual Meeting of the Polymer Processing Society

Schleifenbaum H, Meiners W, Wissenbach K, Hinke C (2010): Individualized production by means of high power Selective Laser Melting, 2 (3),161–169, CIRP Journal of Manufacturing Science and Technology



Outline	
	 Introduction and motivation
	 Die manufacturing by Selective Laser Melting
	 Surface finish and reworking strategies
	 Summary and outlook
© RWTH Aachen University	Page 1

















Sample 2: Reworking by Micro-Machining Processing (MMP)

Case 3: Reworking of the whole flow channel by MMP

- MMP: mechanical-physical-chemical surface treatment in a closed process chamber
 - → Mechanical: Flow of high-energy particles along the surface
 - \rightarrow Physical-chemical: Combination of the particles with a catalyst
- Reworking of free-form surfaces possible
- Achievable surface roughness: $Rz \approx 3 4 \mu m$

Case 4: Reworking of the whole flow channel by MMP + milling of the die land

Combination of the cases 2 and 3

© RWTH Aachen University





Summary &	Outlook
	Die manufacturing by SLM is investigated.
	Roughness of SLM surfaces is not sufficient for the extrusion process.
	The surface finishing strategy must deliver a sufficient surface finish of the profile and be applicable to free-form surfaces.
	Different surface finishing strategies are tested on a die for the production of a L-profile.
	Topology optimization
	Adaptation of the system peripherals (die tempering)
© RWTH Aachen University	Page 13 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION



Improvement of Global Footprint Design decisions by the use of an evolutionary algorithm

Schuh, G.

Potente, T. t.potente@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

Varandani, R. r.varandani@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

Witthohn, C. c.witthohn@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: Global footprint, globalization, complexity, genetic algorithm

Globalization has opened global markets to production industries. Following the markets producing companies started to set up sites all around the globe. The historically emerged production networks have become more and more complex due to the increasing amount of sites, products and customer markets. Nowadays the global footprint design of producing companies is a complex decision situation for managers in charge. The multitude of influencing factors and possible choices combined with the low amount of time available to managers create a major challenge. With the developed IT tool called "OptiWo" the decision maker gets the broad input of needed information in a compact manner. The influencing factors are used as input data to generate a virtual global production footprint. By the use of an evolutionary algorithm the virtual footprint is optimized regarding its total landed costs. With the use of interactive and intuitive visualization, the decision basis supports the decision making process effectively. On this way the decision maker is able to overview the complex decision background in a short amount of time and make better decisions in global footprint design.

Bibliography

E. Abele, T. Liebeck and N. Merz, "Globale Produktion - eine Frage des Standorts," Werkstatttechnik online, vol. 98, no, 1, pp. 92-97, 2008.

M. Huelsmann and P. Cordes, "Autonomous Co-operation in International-Supply-Networks - The Need for a Shift from Centralized Planning to Decentralized Decision Making in Logistic," in Proceedings of the 10th International Symposium on Logistics, Lisbon, 2005, pp.243-249.

lyengar, S., 2011. How to make choosing easier. TEDSalon NY2011, available: http://www.ted.com/talks/sheena_iyengar_choosing_what_ to_choose .html

Vliegen, R., van Wijk, J., van der Linden, E-J., 2006. Viusalizing Business Data with Generalized Treemaps. IEEE Transactions on Visualiuation and Computer Graphics, vol. 12, no. 5, p.780-796.

G. Schuh, T. Potente, R. M. Varandani, T. Schmitz, "A complexity-oriented approach to global production network design" in Proceedings of the 2013 International Conference on Innovation and Information Management (ICIIM 2013), Singapore 2013


© RWTH Aachen University

Page 1





The complexity of global production networks today can only be handled by using data and creating transparency





© RWTH Aachen University

RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Page 7



The data integrated into the tool is based on six simple standardized tables

A to B (droglog hate gern 2 per year to be	
	 All possible locations with overhead costs Product groups with volumes and transport information Alternative process chains and technologies per product Transport and customs information between all sites Cost information, e.g. labor costs, for all sites Material costs per product for each region
RWTH Aachen University	Page 9 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION





Interactive visualization of results and reconfiguration Configurator/ Sensitivity Analysis

	Image: Control of the second
Image: Section of the section of th	None Wig Martinia Martinia <td< th=""></td<>
 Allows to determine, how robust the solution is against the variation of specific cost parts 	The configurator allows to change the footprint manually
 For example: The influence of a rise of transportation costs on the whole footprint can be calculated 	 Optimization can be started again with the new data model
RWTH Aachen University	Page UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION



Thank You!

Dipl.-Wirt. Ing. Carsten Witthohn

WZL der RWTH Aachen

Tel.: + 49 (0) 241/ 80 26265 Mail: C.Witthohn@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

© RWTH Aachen University

Machine development for direct, mouldless production systems

Schrage, J. Biermann, T.

Keywords:

Selective Laser Melting, SLM, Machine

Abstract

In this presentation the approach for the development of a reference architecture for direct, mould-less production systems is described. Typical SLM machines can be divided in three major modules: optical system, the process chamber and the build platform. In this framework a new high productivity machine will be developed that fulfills the following requirements:

- Increase of the laser-on time up to 100%
- Reduction of the auxiliary times
- Scalability of the build volume
- Scalability of the build up rate
- Machine flexibility

The presentation comprises first concepts of a process chamber of a SLM machine with its technical. The process chamber consists of a gas-tight cabinet, a build platform for mounting the substrate plate, linear drives for the powder recoater movement, interfaces for powder feeding and condition sensors. By integrating two scanning systems in this process chamber an extended scan field size of 200 mm x 400 mm can be realized that allows for new process strategies. Due to parallelization of two scan processes an enormous increase of the build up speed is possible. Or else by overlapping both scan fields new scan strategies like double beam processing is possible. To conclude the presentation the results of the technical evaluation of the process chamber concepts and the design of the winning concept are shown.

AG	GENDA
1	Motivation and introduction
2	Methodology for technical and economical evaluation
3	SLM machine concepts
4	Summary and outlook
© RW	VTH Aachen University RNTHAACHEN HOUSE Page UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

AG	BENDA
1	Motivation and introduction
2	Methodology for technical and economical evaluation
3	SLM machine concepts
4	Summary and outlook
© RW	TH Aachen University Page 3 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Methodology for technical and economical evaluation Identification of performance drivers

Technische Parameter	Maschinenkonfigura	ation a	Technisch	Technische Parameter		Bearbeitungsaufgabe a	
Bauraumvolumen	250x250x300	mm ³	Anzahl der S	Anzahl der Schichten		Schichten/Bauprozess	
Anzahl der Bauraummodule	1		Belichtungsz	eit	180	s/Schicht	
Bauraummodul mobil (ja/nein)	nein		Beschichtun	gszeit	35	s/Schicht	
			a÷⊇	Achse Pulverförderung	4	S	
Laserstrahlquelle	IPG SM Faserlaser		ler ten a ngszi	Achse PAE	30	s	
Laserleistung (max.)	1000	W	teil d onen:	Achse Hubeinheit	1	S	
Laserstrahldurchmesser	100	μm	An	Pulverabstreifelement	30	S	
Scanfeldabmessung	250 x 250	mm ²	⊼ 8	Schutzgaspumpe	35	s	
Anzahl Laserstrahlquellen	1		ent ngs	Laser	180	S	
Anzahl Scanfelder	1		npon npon chtu zeit	Scanner	180	s	
			An Kon Beli	Schutzgaspumpe	180	S	
Anzahl der Hubantriebssysteme	1		Standzeit Pu	lverabstreiferelement	10000	Schichten	
Heizleistung der Bauplattformheizung	5	kW	Dauer Rüstp	rozess (manuell)	2	h	
			Dauer Rüstp	rozess (automatisiert)	0,5	h	
Schleifwelle (ja/nein)	nein		Losgröße		15	Einheiten	
Positionssensorik für Schicht-0-	nein		Einheiten pro	Einheiten pro Bauprozess Pulverwerkstoff	3	Einheiten / Bauprozes	
Erkennung (ja/nein)			Pulverwerks		AlSi10Mg		
			Kornfraktion	des Pulverwerkstoffs	25 - 56	μm	
			Bauteilvolum	ien pro Einheit	1000	cm ³	
			Bauteilgewic	ht pro Einheit	2,7	kg	
ollowing VDI 2885:	a und Ermittlung von Instandh	altungskosten	Supportvolu	men pro Elnheit	120	cm ³	

AGENDA		
1 Motivation and introduction		
2 Methodology for technical a	and economical evaluation	
3 SLM machine concepts		
4 Summary and outlook		
© RWTH Aachen University	RWITH AACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 12
SLM machine concepts Objectives of new machi	ine concept	
List of requirements	100% laser-on time	

 After process: dismounting of substrate plate, cool down, removal of powder

> RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

- Flexibility of the machine structure
 - Scalability of build up rate
 - Scalability of build volume

© RWTH Aachen University

F

F

F

F F F

F

Einkopplung der Laserstrahlung ermöglichen Einstellung des Arbeitsdrucks ermöglichen (max. 140 mbar)

ermöglichen (max. 140 mbar) Sauerstolfgehalt der Atmosphäre (in der Gassammelletung) $\lambda_{2\mu}$ und $\Omega_{2,mal}$) Temperatur der Substratplatte, der Prozesskammer und des Schutzgas (T_{80,80}+ T₈₀- Mol T₈₀) Absolutposition der Substratplatte aut und 2_{8,0,80}) Strömungsgeschwindigkeit des Schutzgassel/Volumenstrom (v₅₀) Geschwinflickt der

schwindigkeit der Iverauftragseinheit

on der Pul

Page 13

SLM machine concepts Concepts of the SLM process chamber

Summary and outlook

Summary and outlook Process development **Modularisation of SLM Machinery** - Multi-scanner system - Multi-beam process Energy management Powder management Reduction of auxiliary times New process strategies Process management Automated process start Development of concepts for each module Investigation of process gas flow **Evaluation of the concepts Technical Evaluation Economical Evaluation Design and Construction Process Development** RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION © RWTH Aachen University Page 21

Thank you for your attention!

Any questions

Fraunhofer Institute for Laser Technology ILT Chair for Laser Technology LLT Aachen, Germany

Dipl.-Ing. Johannes Schrage Phone: +49-(0)241/8906-8062 Fax: +49-(0)241/8906-121 johannes.schrage@ilt.fraunhofer.de www.ilt.fraunhofer.de

© RWTH Aachen University

Adaptive Sequence Planning for Production Networks

Ewert, D. daniel.ewert@ima.rwth-aachen.de

Jeschke, S. sabina.jeschke@ima.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: adaptive manufacturing planning, production networks

Abstract

The manufacturing industry faces a pressure to innovate. The increasing competition from low-wage and emerging economies as well as changing market requirements towards shorter product life cycles and individualized products necessitate more flexible and adaptive production processes [BRE2007,KAG2012].

One possible approach is to automate process planning. As a result, production facilities could autonomously adapt to new products or changes within the facility. Additionally, production processes could be continuously optimized towards changing goal systems. In this talk we therefore present an approach for an autonomous planning and control system for future manufacturing facilities.

To allow for flexible processes, such future manufacturing facilities are organized as *production networks*: Here, modular *manufacturing units (MU)* provide self-contained *manufacturing services*. To facilitate flexible flow of materials, the facility must provide complete interconnectivity as well as interoperability between the MUs.

In such a setup, a user does provide a declarative description of the desired product. By using this formalized description the system autonomously derives all feasible manufacturing sequences. During the actual production the planning system calculates the optimal manufacturing sequence given the available manufacturing services and the current state. In case of unplanned changes or new orders, the system triggers an update of the plan and adapts the production plan to these changes.

Bibliography

Brecher, C. e. a. (2007): Excellence in Production. Apprimus.

Kagermann, H., Wahlster, W., & Helbig, J. (2012). Umsetzungsempfehlungen für das Zukunftsprojekt Industrie 4.0–Abschlussbericht des Arbeitskreises Industrie 4.0. Forschungsunion im Stifterverband für die Deutsche Wissenschaft. Berlin.

© RWTH Aachen University

Motivation – trends in production







Thank you!

Dipl.-Inform. Daniel Ewert Institute of Information Management in Mechanical Engineering phone: +49 241-80-91128 daniel.ewert@ima.rwth-aachen.de

© RWTH Aachen University



Scalability of the mechanical properties of SLM produced micro struts

Bültmann, J.

Merkt, S.

Hammer, C.

Hinke, C.

Prahl, U.

Bleck, W.

Abstract

Selective Laser Melting (SLM) is a manufacturing process that builds up metallic parts layer by layer directly from 3D-CAD data with almost no restrictions to geometric complexity.

One of the main challenges of the SLM process is to improve its efficiency by increasing the build rate and thereby decreasing time and cost.

One way is to increase laser power and beam diameter to melt more volume in a shorter time. The other way is to reduce the volume that has to be melted.

The volume can be reduced due to the limitless geometric freedom offered by the SLM process. With the SLM process it is possible to generate hollow parts for better exploitation and adaption of the volume to specific load cases. Large volumes can be replaced by lattice structures with a certain volume fraction, saving weight and production time by maintaining the stiffness of the structure. To ensure, that the mechanical properties of the new light weight structures are comparable to the properties of solid base material, several different lattice structures have already been investigated, all consisting of numberless little structs.

Little struts are built in various formats to investigate the scalability of the mechanical properties. The results are shown in this presentation and can be used for better prediction of the mechanical properties of lattice structures manufactured by SLM.











Surface Quality	
Thousands of little powder particles	Roughness
Image: Sector S	 Ra = 10 μm Rz = 60 μm Strut Diameter 200 to 700 μm ψ Hypothesis: Small struts have a lower Ultimate Tensile Strength and Uniform Elongation due to the increasing impact of surface roughness and defects.
© RWTH Aachen University	Page 9 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION



© RWTH Aachen University Page 7















Department of Ferrous Metallurgy RWTH Aachen University Aachen, Germany

Dipl.-Ing. Jan Bültmann Phone: +49-(0)241/80-95809 Fax: +49-(0)241/80-92253 jan.bueltmann@iehk.rwth-aachen.de www.iehk.rwth-aachen.de

VERS

Page 14

10N

© RWTH Aachen University

Assembly of Large Components in a Smart Factory

Janßen, M. m.janssen@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords:

integrative production, self-optimizing assembly, Industry 4.0

Abstract

Complying with tolerance requirements during the industrial production of large components is a major challenge. Environmental influences, which appear to be controllable for the production of small components, have a significant effect on the production of large components. Whilst manufacturing processes are heavily influenced by temperature fluctuations affecting the resulting part geometry, assembly processes of large components, such as aircraft shell elements, are especially influenced by gravitation which results in the deformation of assembly parts and requires compensation. The compensation of environmental influences during automated process control requires large amounts of measurement data regarding e.g. process parameters, temperature and part geometry. The accumulated data is used for the development of models which describe the interdependency of components, processes and the production system. Based on these models, compensation strategies can be developed and evaluated. A single control system can not handle and process the required data volume in an appropriate amount of time. Ongoing interconnection of production resources to a 'Smart Factory' distributes the data to specialized computer systems and the processed data is made available for the individual control systems on demand.

Within this contribution, the benefit of a networked production systems in a 'Smart Factory' is discussed and strategies to avoid or how to react on component deformation in downstream processes will be presented.

Bibliography

Kagermann, H. et al.: Recommendations for implementing the strategic initiative INDUS-TRIE 4.0. Final report of the Industrie 4.0 Working Group, 2013.

Brecher, C. et al.: Integrative Production for High-Wage Countries. Springer, ISBN 978-3-642-21066-2, 2012.

















- Markus Janßen (WZL): ICD D3 Coordinator
- Dr.-Ing. Walter Kimmelmann (WZL)
- Objective: guidelines and standards

Contribution at AWK 2014

- Focus: Industry 4.0 The Aachen Approach
- Session 4 "Cyber Physical Production Systems (CPPS)"
- Presentation 2 "Precision Manufacturing and Assembly of Large Components"
- Experts from
 - Alstom
 - FFT EDAG
 - PremiumAerotec
 - MAN

© RWTH Aachen University

AACHENER WERKZEUGMASCHINEN

Industry 4.0

QUIUM 22. bis 23. Mai

wingl

Production

alization.

Knowled

Process

₽ Mid Tier.

RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Page 7

Thank you for your attention!



Contact:

Dipl.-Ing. Markus Janßen Laboratory for Machine Tools and Production Engineering (WZL) at RWTH Aachen University

0241/80-20606	
0241/80-22193	
M.Janssen@wzl.rwth-aachen.	de

Web:

Tel: Fax: Mail:

www.wzl.rwth-aachen.de

© RWTH Aachen University



Supporting technology transfer via web-based platforms

Aghassi, S.

Abstract

In order to stay globally competitive enterprises face an increasing pressure to be innovative. Furthermore, the rising complexity of new technologies forces enterprises into RnDcooperations with third parties as technology development can often not be handled by one organization on its own. In spite of this need for technological innovations, lots of excellent research results from academia remain unexploited. The reason for this often lies in a lacking industrial partner for commercialization of developed technologies, which again is often caused by lacking visibility. Although several measures are taken to bridge the gap between research and industry, their success is not broadly achieved. In the past years, with the rising technical capabilities of modern Web 2.0 and social software technologies, several web-based portals were set up in order to support technology transfer, and increase the visibility of the developed technologies at various research establishments. Within CSP3 a technology transfer portal will be set up within the Cluster of Excellence, in order to create transparency about the technologies developed within the Cluster and the people behind them. In a first step portal usage is considered for internal use by cluster members only, prospectively the portal could be opened up to potential industrial partners. The technology transfer portal is part of the »Scientific Cooperation Portal«, developed together with CSP1.









Technology transfer portals Example portals from other research clusters







Practial approach Prototype of the »Scientific Cooperation Portal«







Thank you for your attention!



Fraunhofer Institute for Production Technology IPT

Steinbachstraße 17 52074 Aachen Germany



Markus Wellensiek (deputy coordinator)

Department Leader Technology Management Telefon: +49 (0) 241/ 89 04-114 Fax: +49 (0) 241/89 04-6114 markus.wellensiek@ipt.fraunhofer.de E-Mail:



Susanne Aghassi (project leader)

Department Technology Management . Telefon: +49 (0) 241/ 89 04-449 Fax: +49 (0) 241/ 89 04-6449 E-Mail: susanne.aghassi@ipt.fraunhofer.de

© RWTH Aachen University



Linda Kramer

Department Technology Management Telefon: +49 (0) 241/ 89 04-225 Fax. +49 (0) 241/ 89 04-6225 E-Mail: linda.kramer@ipt.fraunhofer.de

André Bräkling

Department Technology Management +49 (0) 241/ 89 04-436 Telefon: Fax: +49 (0) 241/ 89 04-6436 E-Mail: andre.braekling@ipt.fraunhofer.de



Seite 15
Self-optimizing assembly of aircraft shells in global referencing systems

Schönberg, A. a.schoenberg@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords: assembly, automation, metrology

Abstract

Volatile markets impose a significant pressure on assembly systems to handle unknown situations efficiently. Replacing fixed jigs and fixtures by programmable robots can increase the flexibility and reactivity of a production system. Changing boundary conditions and process deviations need to be compensated during assembly as well as short-comings of the robots, e.g. low stiffness and higher systematic deviations. In order to master these challenges, self-optimization is a key technology to control robots in jig- and fixtureless assembly. In order to self-optimize the robots' short-comings perceptive capabilities by using metrology are required to determine the current assembly states. Global referencing systems represent a communication standard to enable the information exchange between the robots and metrology systems inside an assembly cell. Robots can then use the enhanced assembly state information to align the process to a virtual planning state during the real assembly. Grasping forces and geometric deformations of an aircraft shell are to be measured to allow the identification of parameters for a prediction model of the aircraft shell deformation during assembly. This model will be used by the robots for the selfoptimizing assembly of clips and frames with compensation of deformations and for assuring their correct position in the aircraft.

Bibliography

Demeester, F, Dresselhaus, M, Essel, I, Jatzkowski, P, Nau, M, Pause, B, Plapper, P, Schmitt, R, Schönberg, A, Voss, H (2011), Referenzsysteme für wandlungsfähige Produktion, 449-477, Wettbewerbsfaktor Produktionstechnik - Aachener Perspektiven

Nyhuis, P, Reinhart, G, Abele, E (2008) Wandlungsfähige Produktionssysteme – Heute die Industrie von morgen gestalten

Schmitt, R, Jatzkowski, P, Schönberg, A (2012), Navigation as a Key for Self-Optimizing Assembly Processes, 282-291, Advances in Ergonomics in Manufacturing, Human Factors and Ergonomics 18

Schmitt, R, Schönberg, A, Bertelsmeier, F (2013):

Optische Erfassung dreidimensionaler Strukturen in einem globalen Referenzsystem , 129-134, tm - Technisches Messen 80 (4)

Schmitt, R, Witte, A, Janßen, M, Bertelsmeier, F (2013) Modeling of Component Deformation in Self-optimizing Assembly Processes, 222, ISMTII 2013: The 11th International Symposium on Measurement Technology and Intelligent Instruments - Metrology - Master Global Challenges



















Global Referencing Systems represent a modular Communication Network based on Planning Data







6D-force sensor

















Self-optimizing assembly of aircraft shells in global referencing systems



Thank you

- Dipl.-Ing. Alexander Schönberg
- Laboratory for Machine Tools and Production Engineering WZL

R

- RWTH Aachen University
- 🖀 +49 241/ 80 20 571
- \boxtimes a.schoenberg@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

© RWTH Aachen University

Page 27

TON

Fabrication of Hierarchical Structures by Direct Laser Writing and Multi-Beam-Interference

Steger, M. michael.steger@ilt.fraunhofer.de

Hartmann, C. claudia.hartmann@ilt.fraunhofer.de

Keywords:

Direct laser writing, Multi-beam-interference, hierarchical structures, laser structuring, functional surfaces

Abstract

Micro- and nano-structuring and thus functionalization of surfaces is a key feature for many applications ranging from light guidance devices for consumer electronics to bio-compatibility of implants. To create the desired functionalization hierarchical structures are often required. These structures can be considered as a micro-structure with a superposed nano-structure.

The approach presented in this talk therefor also divides the structuring process into two parts. The micro-structure is accomplished by direct laser writing which reaches structure sizes down to of few μ m while the nanostructure is subsequently added by a multi-beam-interference (MBI) approach. The influence of the two subsequent processing steps on the final structure geometry and the process limits for the generating of hierarchical structures by this approach are investigated.



- Nano structuring by Multi-Beam-Interference
- Hierarchical structures by subsequent structuring
- Summary

© RWTH Aachen University



Page 1







- number of pulses
- Ablated volume is for burst ablation smaller than for single pulses at pulse same energy
- Maximal angle $\gamma = 65^{\circ}$

© RWTH Aachen University





















 $\Lambda = 430 \text{ nm}$

RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Page 15

= 500 nm

Λ

© RWTH Aachen University

Summary

- Micro structuring with ps-bursts allows to create smaller structures compared to single pulse ablation
- Multi-beam-inference allows the simultaneously nano structuring of an area which size depends on the available pulse energy
- Creation of hierarchical structures is feasible with the following limitations:
 - the nano structures are perpendicular to each other, not necessarily to the surface
 - the variation of structure depth depending on the angle between surface and interference pattern

© RWTH Aachen University



Michael Steger

R

Chair for Lasertechnology (LLT) RWTH Aachen Steinbachstraße 15 D-52074 Aachen Germany

Phone: +49 241 8906 - 8051 Fax: +49 241 8906 - 121

Email: michael.steger@ilt.fraunhofer.de web.: <u>www.ilt.fraunhofer.de</u>

NVERSITY

R



Page 17

Page 16

Self-optimizing assembly of individualized laser systems

Holters, M. martin.holters@tos.rwth-aachen.de

Plácid Neto, A. placido.amadeu@ilt.fraunhofer.de

Keywords: self-optimizing, assembly system, optical system

Abstract

The self-optimized optical system assembler requires an actuating setup to interact with physical elements that compose the optical system itself. Such system aims to achieve a final modular software with easy access and simple user comprehension. The development was separated in three major processes, which also depicts layers of abstractions. The lowest layer (less abstracted) is the interfacing process, which consists in creating middleware responsible to provide full access from the system running the software to the peripherals. The second layer is the integration process that summarizes in transforming the access to hardware as separated entities to a single input/output unified system. The highest layer is the modularization process that is required to supply flexibility and portability by wrapping the software. An active-safety system is designed to prevent accidents that may occur in actuating system due to the diversity of errors that such systems are susceptible. In addition, it presents error handling in all abstraction layers to assist troubleshooting. These layers are developed concurrently, and currently the Integration layer is virtually finished, while the interfacing layer still needs to be implemented the safety system device, and the modularization layer can only parse a simplified STEP file into the software.

In-Mould Metal Spraying: New production technology for metallised plastic components

Hoppmann, C.

Wunderle, J.

Keywords:

thermal spraying, coating transfer, injection moulding
Abstract

The material combination of metal and plastics is of particular interest to engineering because of their wide range of properties and in terms of weight saving compared to a pure metal construction. In the field of electronics metal and plastics are used because of their conductive/non-conductive behavior. In the housing for enclosed electronics the properties of the metal component can also be used to improve the electromagnetic compatibility. To coat metal on plastic components a new process the "In-Mould Metal Spraying" is developed. The technology combines the thermal spraying of metals with the injection moulding process of plastics. In a first step a metal layer is thermally sprayed onto the surface of the injection mould. In the second step this metal coating is overmoulded with thermoplastic material. During injection moulding and demoulding the metal coating is released from the mould surface and thereby transferred to the plastic part. By this process a conductor track can be produced or a thin metal coating can be integrated on plastic components to improve the EMC properties of the manufactured components. A first preliminary test shows the feasibility of the new technology.







Advantages and disadvantages of the presented methods Coating Overmoulding/Bonding Compounds n de + Layers can be br + Components have + Integrated process with **EMC** properties subsequently applied short cycle times directly after the in any thickness + Metal layer can be + Coating can be production used to improve the applied locally mechanical properties + Processing in conventional injection moulding Limited freedom of Additional pre-and Low Shielding design post-treatment steps compared to pure Inflexible necessary metal layers Finishing and Layer application High filler content automation necessary leads to dimensional leads to reduced inaccuracy flowability

RWTH Aachen University
 Page 5





Interim conclusion and motivation Context There are several methods to improve the . EMC of plastic components which have different restrictions. Objectives A method is developed that enables injection moulding components to be metallised economically and in the shortest possible cycle time in large-scale production. Approach A method based on the thermal spray process and the injection moulding process is to be developed. [Harting KGaA] © RWTH Aachen University Page 8















Model-Based Assembly Control Concept

Malik, A. a.malik@wzl.rwth-aachen.de

Herfs, W.

Keywords: model-based, engineering, control, automation

Abstract

Production cells are typically built up of many heterogeneous components which are controlled by a central unit such as a standard programmable logic controller. Engineering of such cell controllers is usually based on an imperative programming paradigm. All possible decision situations are defined manually and coded offline, which is an acceptable method for simple or fixed recurring automation tasks. Implementing complex control and adaptation strategies however leads to disproportionately high engineering efforts, which incur whenever process changes are required. The topic of the presentation is a model-based assembly control concept. The concept enables the use of degrees of freedom during the assembly process concerning the requests of the hardware and its reconfiguration, e.g. gripper changes. The advantage of the proposed concept is the flexible online combination of elementary actions instead of imperative coding of fixed control sequences. The modelbased control operates on models, which are executed online in contrast to state-of-the-art model-to-code generation.

Bibliography

Brecher, C. (Ed.) Integrative Production Technology for High-Wage Countries, 1. Edition, Springer, 2012.

Hino, R.; Moriwaki, T.: Decentralized Scheduling in Holonic Manufacturing System. Proceedings of the 2nd International Workshop on Manufacturing Systems, Heverlee: Katholieke Universiteit Leuven, 1990, P. 41-47.

Ulieru, M.; Stefanoiu, D.; Norrie, D.: Holonic Self-Organization of Multi Agent Systems by Fuzzy Modeling with Applications to Intelligent Manufacturing. IEEE/SMC 2000, Nashville, USA, October 2000, P. 1661-1666.

Giret, A.: Botti, V.: Analysis and Design of Holonic Manufacturing Systems. ICPR 18th International Conference on Production Research, Salerno 2008.

Kempf, T.: Ein kognitives Steuerungsframework für robotergestützte Handhabungsaufgaben, Diss. RWTH Aachen. 2010.

Bender, D.F., Combemale, B., Crégut, X., Farines, J.M., Berthomieu, B., Vernadat, F.: Ladder Metamodeling & PLC Program Validation through Time Petri Nets. Schieferdecker, ECMDA FA 4: Model driven architecture – foundations and applications: 4th European conference; proceedings. Berlin; Heidelberg, 2008: Springer (Lecture notes in computer science, 5095), P. 121-136. Thieme, J., Hanisch, H.-M.: Model-based generation of modular PLC code using IEC61131 function blocks. Proceedings of the 2002 IEEE International Symposium on Industrial Electronics: L'Aquila, Italy, July, 8 – 11, 2002. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE Operations Center, Vol. 1, 2002, P. 199-204.

Vogel-Heuser, B., Witsch, D., Katzke, U.: Automatic Code Generation from a UML model to JEC 61131-3 and system configuration tools. 2005 International Conference on Control and Automation: June 27-29, 2005, Hungarian Academy of Science, Budapest, Hungary. [Piscataway, N.J.]: IEEE, 2005, P. 1034-1039.

Güttel, K.: Konzept zur Generierung von Steuerungscode für Fertigungsanlagen unter Verwendung wissensbasierter Methoden. Diss. Universität der Bundeswehr Hamburg, 2012.

Brecher, C.; Nittnger, J.; Karlberger, A.: Model-based control of a handling system with SysML, Conference on Systems Engineering Research (CSER'13): March 19-22, 2013, Georgia Institute of Technology, Atlanta, USA.

Zaeh, M. F., Poernbacher, C. Milberg, J.: A Model-Based Method to Develop PLC Software for Machine Tools, CIRP Annals – Manufacturing Technology 54 (2005) 371-374.

Brecher, C., Fayzullin, K., Possel-Dölken, F.: Intelligent operations control. Architecture for seamless integration of scheduling and execution. Production Engineering – Research and Development 2 (3), 2008, P. 293-302.

Fayzullin, K.: Autonome Planung und Entscheidungs-optimierung in der Ablaufsteuerung flexibel automati-sierter Fertigungssysteme, Diss. RWTH Aachen. 2010.

Truyen, E.; Joosen, W.; Nørregaard Jørgensen, B.; Verbaeten, P.: A Generalization and Solution to the Common Ancestor Dilemma Problem in Delegation-Based Object Systems. Proceedings of the 2004 Dynamic Aspects Workshop (103–119).

Craig, J.: Introduction to Robotics: Mechanics and Control (3rd ed.), Pearson Prentice Hall, 2005.

Russell, Stuart J.; Norvig, Peter, Artificial Intelligence: A Modern Approach (3rd ed.), Upper Saddle River, New Jersey: Prentice Hall, 2009.



Content		
1 Assembly Example and Motivation		
2 Control Concept and Validation		
3 Conclusion and Outlook		
© RWTH Aachen University	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 2







Assembly Example and Motivation Disadvantages of Today's Automation

- Usually based on programmable logic controllers
- Imperative programming paradigm
- All decision situations manually defined and coded offline
- Acceptable for simple or fixed recurring automation tasks
- Disproportionately high engineering efforts in case of implementing complex control and adaptation strategies
- Engineering efforts incur whenever process changes are required



© RWTH Aachen University

373

Page 6



Control Concept and Validation Code Generation vs. Interpretation

- Model Driven Development
 - Paradigm which focuses on using abstract knowledge representation in the form of domain models
 - Domain models allow the separation of the problem specification from the implementation details
 - The best known realization is OMG MDA (Model Driven Architecture)
- Code generation
 - Model-based techniques are already used in control technology
 - The common way is the transformation of models into fixed control code
 - Code can be executed using e.g. programmable logic controllers or industrial PCs
- Interpretation and direct execution of models
 - Enabling dynamic re-planning of actions to be executed
 - Changes affect only the model and hence can be implemented more quickly
 - No recompilation and less testing of the software are needed
 - The model is interpreted at run time and can be modified at run time

© RWTH Aachen University





Control Concept and Validation Cell Structure Models cell structure/ elementary actions assembly steps geometric relations Domain specific language Model elements - Component types - States of component type - Component type inheritance - Binary relations between components - Binary relation inheritance - Component instances Multiple inheritance allowed RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION Page 10 © RWTH Aachen University













Content		
1 Assembly Example and Motivation		
2 Control Concept and Validation		
3 Conclusion and Outlook		
© RWTH Aachen University	RWITH AACHENHOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Page 17

Conclusion and Outlook Model-Based Assembly Control

Advantages

- Online action planning
- Declarative description
- Less manual coding
- Disadvantages
 - Subordinated controllers e.g. the PLC still have to be programed manually to offer services
 - Use of elementary robot moving commands (linear movement)
 - Modelling efforts
- Outlook
 - Validation by more complex assembly use cases in order to test the computation times during the action sequence planning
 - Further planning approach for the assembly of products with a variable assembly sequence depending on e.g. measuring results
 - An automatic PLC code skeletons generation based on a service definition
 - Automated model building based on hardware self-description

© RWTH Aachen University	RWITH AACHEN HOUSE	Page 18
	UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	

Influence of surface pre-treatment on the transferability of Zn-EMC-coatings

Schulz, C. schulz@iot.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0)241 80-99942

Bobzin, K.

Öte, M.

Linke, T. F. info@iot.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0)241 80-95327

Keywords:

EMC coatings, wire arc spraying, injection moulding

Abstract

Plastic injection molded parts offer various advantages regarding the weight reduction, production costs and design diversity. However, they are not capable of offering electromagnetic compatibility (EMC) as the non-conductive plastic part cannot work as a shield against electrical radiation disturbance. To functionalize injection molded plastic parts for EMC purposes, these can be coated with electrical conductive metals like zinc. To apply a zinc coating onto plastic parts, injection mould inserts were coated by means of wire arc spraying and subsequently the coatings were transferred onto the injected polymer. The mould inserts were roughened by grinding and by grit blasting using different types of grit material. The obtained surface topography was analyzed by means of confocal laser microscopy. The achieved topography influences the bond strength of the applied zinc coating and consequently the transferability of the coating onto the injected plastic significantly. A high roughness of the injection mould insert lead to an adherent coating which cannot be transferred, whereas the coating deposited on a surface with a low roughness did not adhere to the surface preventing a processability using injection moulding. The surface topography had to be well adjusted depending on the hardness of the mould insert to allow good transferability of the EMC coating.

Bibliography

Bach, Fr.-W., Möhwald, K., Kerber, K., Erne, M., Knödler, P., Otten, M., Biermann, D., Zabel, A., Peuker, A.: Herstellung von nachbearbeitungsarmen Innenbeschichtungen auf Druckgussteilen durch Transplantation thermischer Spritzschichten (Production of Bore Coatings with Less Mechnical Finishing on Die Cast Parts by Transplantation of Thermal Spray Coatings), 15. Werkstofftechnisches Kolloquium, Chemnitz (2012), p. 129-139, in German

DE000001948639 A: Verfahren zum Herstellen von Kunststoffteilen mit einem Metallüberzug (Method to Produce Plastic Parts with Metal Coatings) (1969), Leslie, E., Edwin, M. R, in German

Ehrenstein, G. W.: Handbuch Kunststoff-Verbindungstechnik. Carl Hanser Verlag, München 2004





© RWTH Aachen University	RWITHAACHEN HOUSE Slide 3 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION
	Coating of mould insert, transferring coating onto plastic part
	→ New approach:
[Harting GmbH & Co. KG]	 Todays coating processes Electroplating (only applicable for ABS plastics) PVD (restrictions for plastic material) Wire arc spraying directly onto plastic part (rough surface)
il -	Materials used: Cu, Al, Ag, Ni, Zn
Tion IN M	 Plastic parts not capable of offering EMC protection → Electrically conductive coating
	 Prevention of emission and absorption of electromagnetic waves
	ElectroMagnetic Compatibility (EMC)



















<section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><image><image><image><list-item><list-item>


- Surface pre-treatment has to be adjusted depending on hardness of mould insert
- Achieved topography influences bond strength and consequently transferability
- Carrier body topographies (amount of asperities, slope of asperities and undercuts) need to be described with further suitable parameters (RAq might be promising)
- Required bond strength for coating transfer x < 6 MPa</p>

RWTH Aachen University
 Slide 17
 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Outlook

- Investigation of EMC properties
- Variation of coating thickness
- Variation of coating material (Al, Cu)
- Reducing oxidation of coating by means of nitrogen as atomizing gas
- Investigation of further surface topographies
- Investigation of relationship between surface pre-treatment, roughness parameters and bond strength
- Identification of more suitable roughness parameter; ISO 25178 takes 3D surface texture into account
- Haptic properties for "cool touch effect" (analysis of transferred coating)
- Specification for successful transferability (max/min bond strength)

RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Slide 18

© RWTH Aachen University

Determination of process variables in CO2 lasercutting and GMA welding

Thombansen, U.

Purrio, M.

Buchholz, G.

Hermanns, T.

Molitor, T.

Willms, K.

Schulz, W.

Reisgen, U.

Keywords:

process emission, laser cutting, gas metal arc welding, product quality, surrogate modeling

Abstract

Measurement of process variables is key for self-optimization of manufacturing processes. Within the Cluster of Excellence at RWTH Aachen University, several achievements were made in setting up sensor systems that provide novel information on the operating points of melt based manufacturing processes. These achievements contribute to a gradual increase in system transparency which is seen as an enabler for self-optimization.

In laser cutting of sheet metal, the process of melting metal and ejecting it from the kerf influences product quality. A sensor system for process observation has been implemented which is coupled coaxially to the processing laser beam. This system delivers an image from the zone of laser material interaction allowing the detection of thermal emission. The acquired image of the thermal emission is used to extract surrogate criteria which can be correlated to process variables [1][2][3]. By this, information is gained which helps determining process variables of the current process.

In GMA welding, product quality settles in the process of melting a fillet wire with electrical power resulting in a specific weld seam geometry. This process can be observed by measuring current, voltage and properties of the meltpool. This information is used to extract surrogate criteria which are correlated to product quality.

Both works show how process measurands are used to determine process variables which cannot be measured directly. The work on deriving surrogate criteria shows to add transparency to the manufacturing processes and therefore to the transparency of the overall manufacturing systems

Bibliography

- Zheng, Brookfield, Steen, An experimental study of the relationship between in-process signals and cut quality in gas assisted laser cutting, SPIE Vol. 1276, 1990
- [2] S.L. Chen, In process monitoring of the cutting front of CO2 laser cutting with off-axis optical fibre, Int. J. Adv. Manuf. Technol., 1997
- [3] Keuster, Duflou, Kruth, Real-time adaptive control and optimisation of highpower CO2 laser cutting using photodiodes, Laser Assisted Net Shape Engineering 5, 2007



ISE

Fraunhofer

RWTH



TRUMPF Quelle: Picanol Use Case Use Case MTU Use Case PICACIOL Partner: Partner: Partner: RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION © RWTH Aachen University Seite 3 Fraunhofer RWTH

Self-Optimising Manufacturing Systems – Objectives CoE Conference 09/2013



Self-Optimising Manufacturing Systems – Approach CoE Conference 09/2013 **Generation of Generation of** Implementation of **Process Knowledge** Meta-Model Self-Optimisation Simulation Interpolation Cognition & Optimisation Experiment Evaluation RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION © RWTH Aachen University Seite 5 Fraunhofer SE RWTH







Pulsed Gas Metal Arc Welding – Process Characteristic coE Conference 09/2013

roo

 Cot height

 Process variables (PV):

 gap width due to positioning faults or thermal

 distortion, material feed rate, current, voltage

 (ap 1.0m)

 <tr

Pulsed Gas Metal Arc	Welding – Experimental Setup CoE Conference 09/2013		
Initial situation			
 In situ sensor information f – Pre – no control regarding – Post – only information ab Challenges Papeliaction of a machine was 	or direct process monitoring are not available the influences of the process bout postprocessing gainable		
 Realisation of a machine v observation for pulsed gas Implementation of optical s Development of image pro 	metal arc welding system cessing algorithms		
 Application example Spray-arc on fillet weld Analysed characteristics: Gap position Wire position Weld pool boundary 	 Deduced information Properties of the weld pool like weld pool width (quality criterion) Position of the torch relative to the gap 		
© RWTH Aachen University	Seite 10		
Content	CoE Conference 09/2013		
	manufacturing processes		
	 Requirements from the approach of model based self optimisation for manufacturing processes 		
	Pulsed gas metal arc welding		
	Lasercutting		
	■ Resumee		





Lasercutting – Experimental Setup



CoE Conference 09/2013



Lasercutting – Data from process observation

CoE Conference 09/2013



Resumee	CoE Conference 09/2013	
 Measuring process variables in melt based manufacturing processes Use surrogate criterion Bridge between process variables and measurands Reduce process models to allow fast numerical computation 		
 Self-Optimisation of manufacturing systems Measure surrogate criteria to gain information about the operating point 		
 Use process knowledge to take the actions required to optimise the operating point 	Research funded by DFG in Cluster of Excellence at RWTH Aachen DFG Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft	
© RWTH Aachen University	AACHENHOUSE VERSITY OF PRODUCTION	

Hyperslice Visualization of Metamodels for Manufacturing Processes

Gebhardt, S. gebhardt@vr.rwth-aachen.de

Keywords:

visualization, multi-dimensional data, simulation output analysis, hyperslices

Abstract

In modeling and simulation of manufacturing processes, complex models are used to examine and understand the behavior and properties of the product or process. Computer simulations allow for fast investigation of a large number of alternative designs. This helps to identify optimal designs for improving the process. However, every single simulation can take up to several hours or even days. Thus, in order to reduce the computation time, global approximation models are constructed to serve as surrogates for the original complex models and are often referred to as metamodels. These are multi-dimensional in input and output and often have complex parameter interdependencies and are, thus, hard to understand. Specialized visualizations can greatly help in exploring and understanding them. Therefore, we created an application that provides different possibilities of exploring such multi-dimensional metamodels. We combined hyperslices with direct volume rendering and added further aids for better understanding. This includes navigation along trajectories which are traced along the gradient of the data field to easily navigate between minima and maxima. Additionally training points of metamodels can be displayed what helps metamodel-creators in understanding their creation process.



Machine Configuration

- Complex configuration of machines for manufacturing processes
- Laser cutting: critical criteria like quality or speed affected by various configuration parameters
- Planning of whole factories also affected by criteria like speed



NIVERSITY

© RWTH Aachen University

413

Page 1

ODUCTION

















Navigation Between Extrema	
 Common questions: which machine configuration allows for fastest cuts? best quality? least energy consumtion? 	
\rightarrow Where are the extrema of the data space?	
Other important question: how do parameters influence another?	
\rightarrow What are the interdependencies between parameters?	
Solution: gradient trajectories	
© RWTH Aachen University Page	e 10





Summary

Visualization concept for metamodels for manufacturing processes

Key features:

- Hyperslices linked to volume rendering
- Gradient trajectory naviation
- Training point visualization
- Direct rendering of radial basis function networks

Areas of usage:

- Fast configuration of machines for manufacturing processes
- Understanding general interdependencies between different machining parameters
- Understanding the process of creating metamodels

RWTH Aachen University
 Page 13
 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Future Work • Replace configuration via sliders, etc. by direct manipulation • More intuituve and faster navigation through the data space • Perform calculations on high-end backend • Faster calculations • Larger metamodels • Higher display quality • Link to VPI platform • Consideration of previous observations • Collaboration

Guidelines for traceable Measurements on MTPs

Peterek, M. M.Peterek@wzl.rwth-aachen.de +49 241 80-27112

Keywords:

MTP, traceability, measurement technology, temperature

Abstract

Flexible manufacturing processes for high quality products at low costs are one of the main research objectives in the field of production technology. The quality inspection of large or complex workpieces manufactured on machine tools often takes place beside the production line. The manufacturing process is interrupted and transportation, handling and the loss of the original manufacturing setup influence the workpiece quality. The integration of different manufacturing processes into one machining center (MTP) ensures to be efficient in terms of time and cost and effective in terms of minimum resource consumption. The loss of semi finished products can be faced by an in-process geometric measurement of the workpiece on the MTP with regard to the desired "first-time-right-production".

Due to disturbances like machine defects or temperature fluctuations, the measurement process is not traceable. The measurement data are not comparable and cannot be used for a process improvement or process control.

New Approaches at WZL are aiming to assure the traceability of the inspection processes on the production system. The fusion of appropriate methods for the traceability of CMM's and innovative calibration methods for machine tools will allow the determination of a measurement uncertainty for the measurement system "touch probe and machine tool".





Ensuring Traceability Uncertainty Determination with vCMM

· Martines ()		Simulated Uncertainty vCMM (PTB)		
		Measured	Uncertainty	
	D80* Diameter	79,9909	0,0096	
P BALAS 1	D40* Diameter	40,0048	0,0042	
	D80 Form	0,0133	0,003	
	D40 Form	0,0124	0,0047	
$B \rightarrow 0$ D80	Angle	90,0014	0,0045	
	Straightness A	0,0024	0,0032	
D40 °	Straightness B	0,0016	0,0032	
A	 Input for vCMM: Calibration Data of Hermle C800U (LaserTracer) Touchprobe: M&H, deviation of repeated calibration measurements Workpiece: AI, α=23,5 * 10^-6 K^-1 (u_a= 1,0*10^-6 K^-1) Temperature data during Workpiece Calibration: 20°C Temperature data during Measurement: 22 °C (10 sensors) 			
© WZL/Fraunhofer IPT	unhofer	CVZAL RWITHAA	Page 10	



Futher Steps and Absolute MultiLine System Traceability for machine integrated Measurements


How Virtual Production Intelligence Can Improve Laser-Cutting Planning Processes

Reinhard, R.

Eppelt, U.

Al-Khawly, T.

Meisen, T.

Schilberg, D.

Schulz, W.

Jeschke, S.

Keywords:

Virtual Production, Laser Cutting, Data Integration, Data Analysis

Abstract

The complexity of modern production conditions demands integrative approaches in the fields of simulation and analysis to improve product guality and production efficiency. Existing concepts of virtual production meet this need to some extent. However, problems of application interoperability and data compatibility remain. One approach is the definition of a standardized file format, which is costly to create and to maintain. Other approaches avoid the need for a uniform standard by mapping data structures onto a canonical data model. Although these methods allow for simulation and examination of individual elements, the analysis of the integrated process remains a challenge. Here, the data analysis solutions from the field of the so-called intelligence-solutions can prove useful. Within this paper, a use case scenario taken from the field of laser cutting is presented. Herein, the planning for laser cutting is conducted in a modular format. A new concept is presented that addresses the requirements aforementioned and that conforms to the principles of the integration and examination of data. The new concept, called Virtual Production Intelligence, is formed by combining the concept of virtual production with "intelligence solutions" or the goal of gaining knowledge through the analysis of already completed processes.

Bibliography

[1]	G. Schuh, S. Aghassi, S. Orilski, J. Schubert, M. Bambach, R. Freudenberg, C. Hinke und M. Schiffer, "Technology roadmapping for the production in high-wage countries," in Prod. Eng. Res. Devel. (Production Engineering), Bd. 5, 2011, pp. 463-473.
[2]	B. Ilschner und R. Singer, Werkstoffwissenschaften und Fertigungstechnik: Eigenschaften, Vorgänge, Technologien, Springer, 2010.
[3]	G. J. Schmitz und U. Prahl, Integrative computational materials engineering, Weinheim, Chichester: Wiley-VCH;John Wiley [distributor], 2012, p. 1 online resource.
[4]	Verein Deutscher Ingenieure, Digital factory - Fundamentals, Berlin, 2008.
[5]	Verein Deutscher Ingenieure, Digital Factory - Digital Factory Operations, Ber- lin, 2011.

[6] M. Nagl und B. Westfechtel, Modelle, Werkzeuge und Infrastrukturen zur Untersttzung von Entwicklungsprozessen: Symposium, John Wiley & Sons, 2003. [7] C. Horstmann, Integration und Flexibilität der Organisation durch Informationstechnologie, Gabler Verlag, 2011. Steve Hoberman, "Canonical Data Model," 2008. [Online]. Available: [8] http://www.information-management.com/issues/2007_50/10001733-1.html. [Zugriff am 25 2 2013]. [9] D. Schilberg, Architektur eines Datenintegrators zur durchgängigen Kopplung von verteilten numerischen Simulationen, Aachen: VDI-Verlag, 2010, p. 156. [10] T. Meisen, P. Meisen, D. Schilberg und S. Jeschke, "Application Integration of Simulation Tools Considering Domain Specific Knowledge," in Automation, Communication and Cybernetics in Science and Engineering 2011/2012, Springer, 2013, pp. 1067-1089. [11] B. Byrne, J. KLING, D. McCarty, G. Sauter und P. Worcester, The value of applying the canonical modeling pattern in SOA, Bd. 4, 2008. [12] M. West, Developing High Quality Data Models, Elsevier Science, 2011. [13] U. Bracht, D. Geckler und S. Wenzel, Digitale Fabrik, Berlin, Heidelberg: Springer Berlin Heidelberg, 2011, p. 424. [14] H.P.Luhn, "A Business Intelligence System," IBM Journal, pp. 314-319, 1958. [15] R. Reinhard, C. Büscher, T. Meisen, D. Schilberg und S. Jeschke, "Virtual Production Intelligence – A Contribution to the Digital Factory," in Intelligent Robotics and Applications, Bd. 7506, Springer Berlin Heidelberg, 2012, pp. 706-715. R. Poprawe, W. Schulz und R. Schmitt, "Hydrodynamics of material removal [16] by melt expulsion: Perspectives of laser cutting and drilling," Physics Procedia, Bd. 5, pp. 1-18, 2010.

[17]	M. Orr, "Introduction to radial basis function networks," 1996. [Online]. Available: http://dns2.icar.cnr.it/manco/Teaching/2005/datamining/articoli/RBFNetworks. pdf.
[18]	S. Rippa, "An algorithm for selecting a good value for the parameter c in radial basis function interpolation," Advances in Computational Mathema- tics, Nr. 11, pp. 193-210, 1999.
[19]	D. Jones, Schonlau M. und Welch W., "Efficient Global Optimization of Expensive Black-Box Functions," Nr. 13, pp. 455-492, 1998.
[20]	J. Martin und T. Simpson, "Use of Kriging Models to Approximate Determi- nistic Computer Models," Aiaa Journal, Nr. Vol. 43, No. 4, pp. 853-863, 2005.
[21]	S. Haykin und (3rd Edition) Prentice Hall, Neural Networks and Learning Ma- chines, 3 Hrsg., Pearson Education, 2009.
[22]	F. Jurecka, Robust design optimization based on metamodeling techniques, Shaker Verlag, 2007.
[23]	W. Schulz, Die Dynamik des thermischen Abtrags mit Grenzschichtcharakter, Shaker, 2003.
[24]	W. Schulz, M. Niessen, U. Eppelt und K. Kowalick, "Simulation of Laser Cut- ting," in The theory of laser materials processing, Bd. 119, Dordrecht, Sprin- ger, 2009, pp. 21-69.
[25]	T. Yoel und Chi-Keong G., Computational Intelligence in Optimization, Bd. 7, Berlin: Springer, 2010.
[26]	D. E. Goldberg, Genetic Algorithms in Search, Optimization and Machine Learning, Boston: Addison-Wesley Longman Publishing Co, 1989.
[27]	S. Gerber und K. Potter, "Data Analysis with the Morse-Smale Complex: The msr Package for R," Journal of Statistical Software, Bd. 50, Nr. 2, p. 1-22, 2012.
[28]	M. Gagnon und M. Gagnon, "Ontology-based integration of data sources," [Piscataway, N.J.], IEEE Xplore, 2007, pp. 1-8.

- [29] The R Foundation for Statistical Computing, "The R Project for Statistical Computing," [Online]. Available: http://www.r-project.org/. [Zugriff am 27 2 2013].
- [30] I. Fetter und A. Melnikov, "The WebSocket Protocol," 2011. [Online]. Available: http://tools.ietf.org/html/rfc6455. [Zugriff am 26 2 2013].
- [31] I. RStudio, "Easy web applications in R," 2013. [Online]. Available: http://www.rstudio.com/shiny/. [Zugriff am 6 3 2013].













Modeling & Simulation The modeling of a laser cutting process requires the modeling of at least three entities at the same time: the gas jet the laser beam the material to be cut • ablation simulation for laser cutting Therefore, it is evident that the modeling of the following quantities has to be accomplished as well as their numerical implementation: the cutting gas flow the radiation propagation the ablation of the material simulated beam propagation into cut kerf Rudolf Reinhard 7 IMA CoE Conference KANTI I October 24th-25th, 2013





Pearson: 0.0382022367546856 Spearman: 0.0320687110009552 Kondelli 0.0320687110009552	Goal
30 28 -	 Reduction of number of parameters
	 Determination of correlation between chosen output (criterion) and parameters (inputs)
Pm.W.	Method
Pearson: 0.844013375622671 Spearman: 0.937554874393815	 Sensitivity Analysis
	The study of how uncertainty in the output of a model (numerical or otherwise) can be apportioned to different sources of uncertainty in the model input. (Saltelli et al., 2004)
0-00 0 00 Pm.W.	Tools
Pearson 0.997982768605366 Spearman 0.999697091414565	 Qualitative: Visualisation by scatterplots
Rendali 0.972676013762918	 Quantitative: Computation of rank correlation coefficients (Pearson, Spearman, Kendall) between various criteria and parameters
UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION	Rudolf Reinhard CoE Conference October 24 th -25 th , 2013







Role Models: Virtual Production, Business Intelligence



Virtual Production

Virtual production is the simulated networked planning and control of production processes with the aid of digital models. It serves to optimise production systems and allows a flexible adaptation of the process design prior to prototype realisation. (VDI Guideline 4499, 2008)

Iroschka fotolia.com 2013



Business Intelligence

Umbrella term that includes the applications, infrastructure and tools, and best practices to enable access to and analysis of information to improve and optimize decisions and performance. (Gartner IT Glossary, 2012)



Rudolf Reinhard CoE Conference October 24th-25th, 2013























Enhancement in wire-based laser deposition welding

Wegener, M. maximilian.wegener@ipt.fraunhofer.de +49 (0)241 8904-334

Keywords:

wear, laser deposition welding, flexibility, productivity

Abstract

Laser deposition welding is an efficient method for applying high quality coatings to improve wear and corrosion resistance. However, a deficit is the limited flexibility in terms of varying the deposited run's geometry which is required when the filler material must be connected optimally to the actual geometry of the base material or when maximum productivity is requested. The research should explore whether the flexibility of the laser deposition welding and productivity can be increased through a specific variation of the surface power density. Up to now, modeling of this process is not possible because the material flow is highly unsteady in time and place. Reasons therefore are the unknown properties of the molten pool through the unsteady temperature field and thus varying viscosities, the influence of the gas pressure of the shielding gas and sublimation and chemical reactions. A major goal of this research proposal is to explore this process in an explanation model and to examine correlations to the process parameters.

Bibliography

Klocke F, Brecher C, Wegener M, Heinen D, Fischer B, Do-Khac D (2012): Scanner-based laser cladding. In: Proceedings of the 7th International Conference on Photonic Technologies. Fürth, Deutschland, 12.-15. November 2012



Motivation Wear protection and repair



Thermal spraying



Reduction of wear due to coatings

- Increase of life time
- Reduction of costs an resources

Breakdown due to damage of the part

- Exchange of the "spare parts"
- Repair due to targeted material's deposition

For high quality and expensive parts a good wear protection and in case of part's damage a repair is usually appropriated.

Source: Linde, MTP Metalltechnik



Technical Approach for coating and repairing Laser deposition welding Laser beam Advantages compared to conventional deposition welding Deposited - Wire run High precision due to little and local energy input High coating quality due to low dilution of filler and base material Process principle of laser deposition welding Needs – Increase in efficiency for laser deposition welding Increasing of the processing speed Improving of the process stability Variation of the deposited run's geometry Cross-section of a deposited run RWITHAACHEN HOUSE UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION © RWTH Aachen University Page 3





J	
Technical problem	 A stable process control for laser deposition welding with an adjustment of the deposited run's geometry is not possible up to now
Scientific problem	 The effects and interactions for deposited run's origin in response to the modification of the surface power density have not been clarified There is no model to explain the deposited run's origin with unsteady surface power density
Scientific target	 Development of a inductive, analytical-empirical explanatory model for deposited run's origin – Explanation of causes and effects in submodels – Synthesis to an explanatory model
© RWTH Aachen University	Page 8 UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION
Enhancement of the of the Research hypothesis and The deposited run's geometry and temporal surface	the process borders of laser deposition welding nd research questions etry can be adjusted by specially aimed modification of the local power density. This enables the increase of the procedure's
flovibility a	
	and to produce a homogenous and little dilution.
Research question 1	Research question 2 Research question 3
Research question 1 Which physical mechanisms cause and determine the flow of the material?	Research question 2 How can the surface power density be controlled to achieve a specific geometry of the deposited run?





	Laser deposition welding
	 Advantages compared to conventional deposition welding High precision due to little and local energy input High coating quality due to low dilution of filler and base material
	 The use of a laser scanner is supposed to combine the known advantages of laser deposition welding and an increase in productivity and flexibility
	 Up to now, a stable process control for laser deposition welding with an adjustment of the deposited run's geometry is not possible
	Scientific approach
	 Inductive, analytical-empirical modeling by the explanation of causes and effects in submodels Melting behavior Heat input Dynamics in the molten pool
	 Deductive enhancement of the process borders by drawing of conclusions basing on the explanatory model
© RWTH Aachen University	Page UNIVERSITY OF PRODUCTION

Value-oriented layout planning using the Virtual Production Intelligence (VPI)

Kreisköther, K. D. k.kreiskoether@wzl.rwth-aachen.de +49 (0)241 80-27382

Keywords:

Factory Planning, Layout Planning, Virtual Production Intelligence

Abstract

In the context of a continuous globalization of economic activities, producing companies are facing growing market dynamics. This leads to shorter technology and product life cycles and a growing diversity of variants, caused by the production of customer individual products with smaller quantities. Due to this competitive environment, factory planning has to focus on value-adding activities. To realize a "value-oriented factory planning", the impact of decisions has to be known prior to and during the planning. If these mechanisms are well known, the specific planning project can be adjusted to the ideal ratio of costs and benefits.

Layout planning plays a significant role in factory planning, as it must integrate previous planning results and defines the later production structure on a very detailed level with a long-term impact on the building. In order to integrate the concept of value-oriented factory planning in the planning of production layouts, a layout assessment approach using the "Virtual Production Intelligence" (VPI) platform is presented. Key aim of this layout assessment approach is to measure an existing layout, which can arise from an existing factory or a layout planning project, and provide information about its "fit" in regard to production targets and boundary conditions of the specific production.

Bibliography

Brecher, C. (2012): Integrative production technology for high-wage countries. Springer, Berlin.

Brieke, M. (2009): Erweiterte Wirtschaftlichkeitsrechnung in der Fabrikplanung. Universität Hannover, Garbsen.

Burggräf, P. (2012): Wertorientierte Fabrikplanung. Apprimus, Aachen.

Kampker, A., P. Burggräf, A. Meckelnborg, K. Kreisköther. (2012): Effiziente Layoutplanung in interdisziplinären Teams. Komplexitätsgerechte Tools zur Layoutplanung sichern den nachhaltigen Projekterfolg. VDI-Z Integrierte Produktion 154 (11/12): 74–75.

Meisen, T., R. Reinhard, D. Schilberg, S. Jeschke. (2011): A framework for adaptive data integration in digital production. Proceedings of the 21st International Conference on Production Research.

Verein Deutscher Ingenieure (VDI). (2011a): VDI 5200 "Fabrikplanung" - Blatt 1 "Planungsvorgehen". Verein Deutscher Ingenieure (VDI), Düsseldorf.

Wirth, S., H. Mann, R. Otto. (2000): Layoutplanung betrieblicher Funktionseinheiten. Leitfaden. Institut für Betriebswissenschaften und Fabriksysteme, Chemnitz.








Five fields of action have been derived from the identified requirements for a value-oriented layout planning





The specific ideal layout is described abstractly using assessment domains based on production targets and boundary conditions





The assessment approach is integrated into the Virtual Production Intelligence (VPI) platform at RWTH University





Outlook Work packages for the next months



Value-oriented layout planning using the VPI Summary



- Producing companies need to adapt their production more frequently. Thereby, they have to focus on value adding activities to ensure economic efficiency.
- To pursue a value orientation in layout planning, planners need comprehensive and significant feedback regarding the impact of their decisions
- Feedback instruments (e.g. key figures) need to take into account individual (strategic) targets of the production as well as individual boundary conditions.
- The approach will be demonstrated using the VPI platform for data integration and exploration.

R

© RWTH Aachen University



Page 12